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M/D/BOM/1 Deeds and related legal papers Acc Nos. 121 
& 328 

   
   
M/D/BOM/1/1-7 Bundle ‘No.2 Deeds relating to hereditaments called The Red 

House and the Mount’  :  The Red House 1803-33, the White 
House 1803, the Pedlar’s House cottages 1803, and Mount 

Tavern 1833, p.Llanfechain, co.Montgomery.  

 

   
M/D/BOM/1/1-2 1.  Humphrey Parry Dorsett, Plas Ucha, co.Denb., esq (only son and heir in will 

of Francis Dorsett of Oswestry dec’d, grandson and devisee in will of 
Humphrey Parry of Llanfyllin dec’d, eldest son of Thomas Parry of Pool, 
gent. by Blanch Parry, née Jones) 

2.  Revd. William Roberts and Lewis Jones gent. of Oswestry (trustees for 1.) 
3.  Thomas Clemson of Crickheath, p.Oswestry, and James Clemson of Morton 

Hall, same p., farmers 
Mortgage in fee (Lease and Release) for £600. 
Of property in conveyance 1st August 1793, between 1. H.P. Dorsett; Bell his 
wife,  and 2. W. Roberts and L. Jones.  Of m. ir tmt. the Red House and pices 
called y Roft, Dolucha, y Dol ty Llwyn, Tyr Avon, Domen Gastell, Gwerglodd 
gron, Gwerglodd vach, Maes Fynnon, Arwai and Erw in Mostyn’s Lands;  m. 
etc. the White House and pices called Ddol issa, Clwt bach and quillet in piece 
belonging to Jeffrey Atkinson;  2 ms. etc. or cottages called the Pedlar’s House  -  
all in ts. Llanvechan and Llysvechan [Llysfechain], p.Llanvechen, purchased by 
Humphrey Parry from John Jones gent. and wife Mary 
   

22-23 Nov 1803 

M/D/BOM/1/3 1.  Thomas Clemson of Crickheath, p.Oswestry, brother and heir of James 
Clemson, dec’d;  William Clemson, Buckley farm, p.Shrawardine, farmer 
(sole executor in will of James Clemson) 

2.  Edward Edwards, Maesbury Hall, p.Oswestry, farmer 
Release (Lease and Release) for £600 
Consideration  :  £300 each to T. Clemson and W. Clemson. 
 

18-19 Dec 1806 

M/D/BOM/1/4 1.  Edward Evans of Llanfyllin, gent. 
2.  Richard Griffiths of same, gent. 
3.  John Jones of same, gent. 
Mortgage for £1,000 of the Red House, Trench or Ddole issa, Ddole Gannol, 
Domen Gastell, Ddol ucha and Nant, The Mount Cottage and the Town Field 
(16a.), t. Llanfechan and Llys fechan, p.Llanfechan (late in holding of David 
Davies, now Revd. Stephen Evans) 
Recital  : 

22-23 October 1812 
1.  Edward Edwards, Maesbury Hall, gent. 
2.  H.P. Dorsett, Plas ucha 
3.  Edward Evans 
4.  John Jones 
Conveyance to Uses of same property 

 

1-2 Jan 1913 

M/D/BOM/1/5 Bond of Edward Evans and Thomas Evans, Glanbrogan, esq. to Richard 
Griffithes in £2,000 to pay £1,000 
 

2 Jan 1813 

M/D/BOM/1/6 Legal bill on Edward Evans 
 

1823 

M/D/BOM/1/7 1.  Richard Griffithes of Pool, gent. (executor of will and eldest son of Richard 
Griffithes of Llanfyllin, dec’d.) 

2.  Thomas Bibby, Llanfyllin, gent. (only surviving executor in the will of John 
Jones of Llanfyllin, grocer, dec’d) 

3.  Edward Evans, Domen Gastell, p.Llanfechan, gent. 
4.  John Williams, t. Treflach, p.Oswestry, limeburner 
5.  Richard Jones Croxon [solicitor], Oswestry, gent. 
Release and Assignment of Mortgage for £500 to 3. from 4. 
On m. in the village of Llanfechan called The Red House (Thomas Richards), 
Nant The Mount Cottage pulled down and rebuilt as public house Mount Tavern 

6-7 June 1833 
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(David Ellis), yards, gardens etc. called Trench or Ddole issa, Ddole gannol etc. 
(16a.). 
Declaration of uses and trusts. 
 

   
M/D/BOM/1/8-17 Bundle ‘No.3. Title deeds relating to premises….in  

the parish of Llanfechan’ : 
Bryn-gwyn, ps.Llanfechain, Llangynyw and Llanfyllin (1740-
69),  Trallwm Mill [Talwrn Mill], Pen-y-parc, Ysgubor-goch, 

p.Llanfechain (1740-69);  Ffinnant, Plas yn Donia [Plas Dinas?], 
Pen-y-parc, Ysgubor-goch, Talwrn, Wern-y-wiail, Pen-y-bryn, 

p.Llanfechain, and Widdigoed, ps. Llanfechain and 
Llansanffraid 1787;  Ystymgynon (1740); Domen-gastell, Tyn-y-

cae-meiriog, Tyddyn-y-brynllwyn 1787;  Ysgwennant 1787-
1844;  with will of Edward Evans, Domen-gastell 1835;  

Mathrafal, Plas Dinas and Llys 1787.  

1740- 1844 

   
M/D/BOM/1/8 1.  John Mostyn of Segroit [Segrwyd], co.Denb., esq. 

2.  William Jennens, Grosvenor Sq., M’sex, esq. 
3.  Thomas Lane, late of King St., Covent Garden, co.M’sex, now Goldsmiths 

Hall, London, gent. 
4.  William Mostyn Owen, Woodhouse, co.Salop, esq. (formerly Wm. Mostyn 

the younger, eldest son and heir of Wm. Mostyn the elder of Plas Kynaston, 
co.Denb.) and Rebecca, his wife. (formerly Dod, spinster) 

5.  Rebecca Dod of Edge, co.Chester, widow (mother of Rebecca Mostyn Owen) 
6.  John Humffreys Jones of Llanvilling, esq. 
7.  Francis Lloyd of Domgay, esq. 
8.  Richard Tudor of Garth 
Release in Fee 
Of m. etc. Mathrafal (83a. 37p) (Thomas Davies), p.Llangynniew;  m. or 
dwhouse. Plas Dinas and 2 pieces in Llanvechan (William Dod and Mrs. Jones);  
m. etc. Ysguborgoch with tmt. Llys (John Davies);  m. etc. Pene Park (Thomas 
Owen);  m. etc. Talwrn and Talwrn Mill (David Bowen and --- Parry);  Werny 
Wiel (Robert Price);  Erw Gams, cae Issas, Fron and quillet in Mr. Price’s 
Meadow (Thomas Pugh and Edward Evans);  quillets in David Davies’s Tmt. 
called Glanypwll (Thomas Morgan);  piece Gwerglodd Vach part of farm 
Fynnant (William Newbroke);  pieces called Cae myn, cae Rye Grass, Cae Crwn, 
Gwerglodd Issa, Llwyny and quillet Llwynny par of Ysquenant farm (John 
Jones);  m. etc. Ysquenant and pieces called Erwhir, Croft, cae Flan Drws and 
Gwerglodd Bitfal (John Jones) - all residue of farm Ysquenant in recital (i) 
below. 
m. etc. Widdigoed, p.Llanvechan and Llansaintffraid (Widow Edwards);  m. etc. 
Pen y Brin (John Davies);  m. etc. Llys with tmt. Ysgubergoch (purchased by 
William Mostyn dec’d of Rachael Evans, widow) (John Davies)  - all in p. 
Llanvechan in recital (ii) below.  Consideration  :  £8,806 to 4. From 6. (under 
iii.) 
Surrender 
Consideration  :  £3,000 to 4 from 6. 
Merging 2 terms of 1,000 years (under recitals (ii) and (iii) below) in estate of 
freehold, conveying m. etc. Domen Gastell (Thomas Daniel);  m. etc. where 
Robert Watkin dwelt called Tu yn y Cae Meriog;  pieces called Cae Meriog;  Yr 
Erw Bychen, Gwrglodd cae meriog and Cae du;  m. etc. (formerly John 
vaughan);  pieces called Erwdderwen and Drill Bedwog - all in t. Llysvechan, 
p.Llanvechan (purchased by William Mostyn dec’d of Rachael Evans widow);  
m. etc. the Brook (Thomas Daniel) (purchased by W. Mostyn of Thomas and 
Mary Chidlow);  m. etc. Tyddyn y Brynllwyn and pieces  (Thomas Daniel) 
(purchased by W. Mostyn of Jonathan Davies the elder and the younger), 
p.Llanvechan. 
£7,000 (part of £19,000) to 2. from 8. assigning property in recital (iii) below. 
Details given of rents.  Schedule of deeds 1727-87 
 
 
Recitals : 

2 Feb 1787 
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(i) 27-28 October 1740 
1.  John Mostyn of Bryngwyn esq. 
2.  William Mostyn, his brother 
3.  Humphrey Mostyn, esq., youngest brother of 1.; Revd. Roger Mostyn 
4.  Robert Wynne of Plas Newydd, co.Denb, esq;  Grace Mostyn, then Grace 

Wynne, spinster, his eldest dter. 
5.  John Price, esq.;  John Mostyn of Segroit;  Robert Wynne of Garthewyn, 

co.Denb., esq.;  Robert Wynne of Dyffryn Alatt, co.Denb., esq. 
Marriage Settlement conveying cap. m. and demesne Bryngwyn (of 1.), ps. 
Llanvechan, Llangyniew and Llanvilling (Walter Humphrey, Edward Allen, 
David Evans, widow of Richard Evans, Thomas David, David Ellis, --- Howell 
widow, etc.);  Trallwm Mill [Talwrn] water corn mill (Griffith Davies);  m. etc. 
in t. Ystymgynnon (Richard Meredith), furlong or quillet called Lettyhene;  m. 
etc. Peny Park and Skyber Goch, t. Ystymgynnon.  To uses. 
 
(ii)  19-20 September 1769 
1.  William Mostyn; William Mostyn the younger (now William Mostyn 

Owen) 
2.  Bell Lloyd, esq.;  Humphrey Humphreys, gents. 
3.  John Mostyn of Segroit;  Robert Mostyn the elder; William Mostyn the 

younger (now Mostyn Owen) 
Lease and Release to Uses of said property 
 
(iii)  21 September 1769 
1.  William Mostyn the elder 
2.  William Mostyn the younger 

   Mortgage for £3,000 for 1,000 years 
  

   (iv)  21-22 September 1769 
1.  William Mostyn the younger 
2.  Randle Dod of Edge, esq. 
3.  John Mostyn of Segroit;  Robert Wynne of Plas Newydd 
4.  John Crewe and John Letche, esqs. 
5.  Rebecca Dod and Rebecca Dod, spinster (now Mostyn Owen) 
Marriage Settlement of 1. with Randle Dod. 
 
(v) 11 August 1775 
1.  William Mostyn Owen 
2.  William Mostyn the elder;  Grace, his wife 
3.  Rebecca Dod;  Rebecca Owen, wife of William Mostyn Owen 
4.  John Mostyn of Segroit;  Robert Wynne of Plas Newydd 
5.  Revd. Charles Mytton 
Conveyance and Fine, 16th August 1775, of Finnant, Llys, Withycoed wiel, 
Plas yn Donia and Mathrafal, ps. Llanvechan and Llangynniew (William 
Pembroke, John Davies, others) amounting to £299 10s. yearly 
 
(vi) 7-8 July 1784 
1.  William Mostyn the elder 
2.  William Mostyn Owen 
3.  William Jennens 
4.  Richard Bennett, Walter Thursby, Richard Slaney 
5.  Thomas Lane 
Mortgage for £19,000 of said property 
 
(vii)  22-23 November 1784 
1.  William Mostyn 
2.  Robert Watkin Wynne esq. 
3.  Lewis Jones, gent. 
4.  William Mostyn Owen 
Lease and Release subject to mortgage debts of £600 and £300 
 

M/D/BOM/1/9-10 1.  John Humffreys Jones of Llanfyllin, esq. 
2.  Edward Wynne Evans of Oswestry, mercer 
Lease and Release of pieces called Caemyr, Cae Ryegrass, Cae crwn, Gwerglodd 
issa, Llwyny and quillet Llwyny part of Ysquenant farm (John Jones);  m. or 

5-6 Dec 1788 
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dwhouse. Ysquenant and pieces called Erw hir, Croft, cae flan drws and 
Gwerglod Bitfal (John Jones at £10 rent), p.Llanfechan.  To uses. 
 

M/D/BOM/1/11-12 1.  Edward Wynne Evans 
2.  Joseph Carless of Shrewsbury, druggist 
Mortgage in Fee for £400 on property in M/D/BOM/1/9-10 
 

10-11 July 1789 

M/D/BOM/1/13 1.  Joseph Carless of Shrewsbury, banker 
2.  Edward Wynne Evans 
3.  Edward Evans of Glanfrogan, p.Llanfechan, gent. 
Lease and Release of m. or tmt. etc. Ysquenant [Ysgwennant] (Thomas Davies), 
p.Llanfechan 
Consideration  :  £400 
 

1-2 April 1802 

M/D/BOM/1/14 1.  Edward Evans of Llanfyllin, maltster 
2.  John Williams of Treflach, p.Oswestry, limeburner 
3.  Thomas Tudor of Shrewsbury, esq. (sole executor in will of Richard Tudor of 

Garth dec’d) 
4.  Richard Watkin of Argoed, p.Kinnerly 
Mortgage in Fee for £300  of Ysquenant (Richard Owen), p.Llanfechan. 
 

6-7 May 1817 

M/D/BOM/1/15 1.  John Williams of Treflach, p.Oswestry 
2.  Edward Evans of Domen Gastell, p.Llanfechan, farmer 
3.  John Edwards of Abertanat, p.Llanyblodwell, gent. 
4.  William Watkin of Bryn, p.Llanyblodwell, gent., and Robert Edwards of the 

Gro, p.Llansaintffraid, maltster (administrators of  Richard Watkin of Argoed 
dec’d.) 

5.  Thomas Ward of Crickheath, p.Oswestry, gent. 
Assignment of Mortgage 
£307 10s to 1. from 3. on Ysquenant. 
 

18-19 Dec 1827 

M/D/BOM/1/16 Copy of will of Edward Evans of Domengastell. [see M/D/BOM/1/72-73] 
Devises Boar’s Head now called Tyn y Llan (Robert Davies), m. etc. (Edward 
Kynaston), the Mount (David Ellis), dw. house (Richard Jones), fields part of 
Boar’s Head tmt., p.Llanfechan to wife Eleanor for life subject to interest of 
£500;  then to children.  Charges estate with payment of debts subject to £1,000 
for younger children;  devises Domengastell and Domengastell fach and the 
Wern, Ty’ny Street and part of Squennant farm, 2 ms. (Edward Foulkes, Harry 
Humphreys), 3 ms. in village  of Llanfechan (David Bembow, Griffith Jones, 
John Vaughan), piece (John Lewis), 3 pieces (sister Eleanor Evans), m. called 
Squennant and 5 pieces (Samuel Williams), Ty Gwyn (Thomas Richards and 
testator), p.Llanfechan, 2 pews in p. church, to wife Eleanor and son John, then to 
John alone. 
Declaration of trusts. 
Probate (St Asaph) 16th June 1837. 
  

18 Sept 1835 

M/D/BOM/1/17 1.  John Edwards of Aber Tanat, p.Llanyblodwell, gent. 
2.  Eleanor Evans of Domengastell, p.Llanfechan, widow 
3.  John Evans of same, gent. 
4.  Thomas Ward of Crickheath, p.Oswestry, gent. 
5.  Catharine Jane Blunt, Newport, co.Salop, widow 
6.  Richard Jones Croxon, Oswestry, gent. 
Mortgage for £600 (part of £800) from 5 to 1. 
Of m. etc. Ysquenant, p.Llanfechan (49a. 6p.).  Assignment to 6 of same for 
remainder of 500 years. 
Plan. 
 

27 Mar 1844 

   
   
   
   
M/D/BOM/1/18-26 Bundle ‘No.4. Deeds relating to premises called Talwrn 

otherwise Ty Gwyn-yn-y Talwrn and to Lands received in 
Exchange from Robert Maurice Bonnor Maurice Esq. both 

1810-1839 
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situate in the parish of Llanfechan….’, co.Montgomery 
   
M/D/BOM/1/18 1.  Edward Heyward of Crosswood, esq. 

2.  Edward Evans of Llanfyllin, gent. 
3.  Thomas Evans of Glanbrogan, esq. 
Lease and Release to Uses of property in Deed to Lead to a Common Recovery, 
11th-12th Aug 1786, 1. Edward Heyward the elder and younger (son and heir 
apparent, party)  2. Robert Owen, gent.  3. Richard Tudor, gent.  Of m. or tmt. 
Talwrn to uses. 
Consideration  :  £750 
   

26-27 Mar 1810 

M/D/BOM/1/19 ‘An account of money received by Mr Edward Evans from Thomas Williams of 
Talwrn on account of annuity &c. due to ….from Thomas Pugh Senior of Talwrn’ 
Fragment.  
 

1809-1815 

M/D/BOM/1/20-24 Valuation papers of land and tithes proposed to be exchanged. 
 

 

M/D/BOM/1/25 1.  Robert Maurice Bonnor Maurice of Pentrepant, co.Salop, esq. 
2.  Eleanor Evans of Domengastell, p.Llanfechan, widow. 
3.  John Evans of same, gent. 
4.  John Williams of Trefonnen, co.Salop, gent 
5.  Thomas Longueville Longueville of Oswestry, gent. 
Deed of Exchange 
To 2. and 3.  :  pieces called Maes-y-Bronllwyd (6a. 39p.) and part of Dôl faur 
(1a. 3r. 5p.) in tenure of Evan Sidlow. 
To 2.  :  pieces called Part of Dôl issa (2a. 13p.), Piece above the Road (1a. 1r. 
29p.),  Green Piece (1a. 1r. 14p.) and Dôl Moody (2a. 2r. 20p) (Eeleanor Evans, 
John Evans, Evan Evans) 
Plan. 
 

16-17 April 1839 

M/D/BOM/1/26 1.  Robert Maurice Bonnor Maurice;  Revd.  Richard Bonnor Maurice Bonnor of 
Mount Sion, co.Salop;  Richard Hill Miers, Peterstone Court, co.Brecon, esq. 

2.  Eleanor and John Evans. 
Bond in £1,000 to observe covenants in M/D/BOM/1/25 
 

17 April 1839 

   
M/D/BOM/1/27-51 Bundle ‘31’  :  ‘Dr Edward Evans, The Mount, Llanfechain  :  

Deeds and documents relating to property’ 1832-1921  :  
Talwrn, talwrn Mill, p.Llanfechain, 1834-1911;  Tyn-yr-wtra, 
p.Meifod, 1835;  Dingle, p.Llanysilio, 1835;  Domen-gastell 
(1799)-1921;  Tyn-y-stryd otherwise Tyddyn-y-brynllwyn, 

Domen-gastell Fach and Gwernwion (1799), 1850;  Tyn-y-llan, 
The Mount (1835) 1911-21;  The Red House, Boar’s Head, 

Mount Tavern, Ysgwennant, Talwrn otherwise Ty-gwyn yn y 
Talwrn 1850-1911;  Sycamore Cottages 1894; Ty-gwyn, Tyn-y-

maes Cottage 1894-1911;  Cantrebedd Slate Quarry, 
Abergynolwyn, 1911;  with wills of Revd. Edward Evans 1893 

and Mrs. Elizabeth Evans 1910. 
 

1799- 

M/D/BOM/1/27 Copy of observations of Mr Allnatt at foot of draft of Recovery 
 

26 Jan 1832 

M/D/BOM/1/28 Valuation of the Domen Gastell Estate, p.Llanfechain, belonging to Jno. Evans 
esq. 
 

 

M/D/BOM/1/29 1.  Thomas Pugh of Llanfyllin;  Edward Evans of DomenyCastell, p.Llanfechen, 
gents.;  Eleanor, his wife 

2.  John Roberts late of Tyucha, p.Llanfechen, farmer 
Draft Agreement 
To let m. or tmt. etc. Talwrn, p.Llanfechen, (Moses Thomas) and water corn mill 
Talwrn Mill (--- Bennet) and piece cae Velin (John Jones) from year to year. 
Rent  :  £220 to 1. For lives then to heirs under Settlement 9th April 1808. 
 

-- Oct 1834 

M/D/BOM/1/30 1.  Thomas Pugh of Llanfyllin, gent. 22-23 May 1835 
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2.  Edward Evans of Domenygastell, p.Llanfechan, gent. 
3.  Edward Foulkes, Llanfyllin, farmer 
Lease and Releases to Uses 
Of m. etc. with lands called Tynwtra (Thomas davies), p.Myfod;  m. etc. Dingle 
(William Weaver), p.Llandisilio;  moiety of m. etc. the Mill Cottage and lands 
called Talwrn (John Roberts), p.Llanfechan. 
Consideration  :  £150 to 1. from 2. and bond from 2. and John Evans for 
payment of £40 annuity or £15. 
Recited that 1. is entitled to Tynwtra for life subject to £20 annuity to wife Sarah 
if she survives him and to Dingle for life subject to £200 mortgage;  entitled to 
moiety for life subject to £42 annuity to --- Atcherley and insurance fees on life 
of 1. (in all £77), payment of £500 to children of 2. And £1,000 mortgage to 
representatives of --- Davies dec’d. 
 

M/D/BOM/1/31 Certificate by Robert Williams, rector of llanfyllin, of births and baptisms of 
children of Edward Evans of Glanbrogan. 
 

28 Nov 1860 

M/D/BOM/1/32 Requisitions on title 
 

1860 

M/D/BOM/1/33 1.  John Williams of Trefonnen, p.Oswestry, co.Salop, limeburner 
2.  John Williams (said) as heir and executor of John Williams of Treflach, 

limeburner, dec’d. 
3.  Catharine Jane Blunt, formerly of Newport, co.Salop, now of Longden upon 

Tern, spinster 
4.  Eleanor Evans of Domengastell, p.Llanfechan, widow. 
5.  John Evans of Domengastell, p.Llanfechan, gent. 
6.  Revd. Edward Evans of Capel Garmon near Llanrwst, co.Denb., 
7.  Henry Tudor, 27 Threadneedle St., London, esq.; John Donne, New Court, 

Throgmorton St., London, wine merchant;  Edward Horner, Bucklersbury, 
London, merchant. 

8.  Richard Jones Croxon, Oswestry, gent. 
Mortgage for £4,000 (£2,000 to 2.) 
On Domengastell, Ty-yn-y-Street otherwise Tyddyn y Bryn Llwyn, 
Domenygastell fach and 2 fields, Gwern-Wyon, p.Llanfechan;  m. or tmt. in the 
village of Llanfechan called The Red House, m. etc. formerly Nant-The Mount 
Cottage since pulled down and rebuilt as public house called Mount Tavern;  
yards, gardens and pieces called Trench or Ddol issa, Ddol Gannol, Domen 
gastell, Ddol Ucha and the town field (16a.), p. Llanfechan; Ysquenant (49a. 6p.), 
Talwrn otherwise Ty-gwyn-yn-y-Talwrn with m. occupied therewith; piece 
called Werglodd Brook (2a. 1r. 17p), village of Llanfechan;  pieces in (vi) below. 
Former tenants named. 
Declaration of uses.  Schedule of property. 
 
Recitals: 
i.  7 Feb 1798 Will of Edward Evans; codicil 31 Nov 1799.  Died December 

1799.  Devising Domengastell, Ty-yn-y-street etc. Domenygastell fach and  
Gwern-Wyon to Edward Evans subject to legacies. 

ii.  8-9 April 1808. 
1.  Thomas Pugh, Talwrn, p.Llanfechan, gent 
2.  Edward Evans the son, then of Glanfrogan issa, gent 
3.  John Jones and Samuel William, gents 
4.  Thomas Pugh the younger;  Sarah, his wife 
5.  Eleanor Evans, then Pugh of Talwrn, spinster 
6.  Richard Griffithes and John Jones, shopkeepers. 
Marriage settlement before marriage of Edward Evans with Eleanor Pugh.  
£1,000 charged on Domengastell and Ty-yn-y-street etc. with £50 annuity to 
Eleanor Pugh and £1,000 for portions of children of intended marriage 
(details)  Issue specified. 

iii.  26 January 1832 
1.  Edward Evans the son; Eleanor, his wife 
2.  John Evans 
3.  Henry Hammond 
4.  John Croxon, gent. 
5.  John Williams 
Deed to Lead to a Recovery.  £2,000.  Declaration of uses.  Common 
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Recovery, Hilary 2 William IV 
iv.  6-7 June 1833 

1.  Richard Griffithes, gent. 
2.  Thomas Bibby, gent. 
3.  Edward Evans the son 
4.  John Williams, Treflach, limeburner 
5.  R.J. Croxon 
Mortgage for £500 to 3. from 4. 

v.  18 September 1835 
Will of Edward Evans the son devising The Boar’s Head now Tyn y llan 
(Robert Davies), m. etc. (Ed. Kynaston), The Mount (David Ellis), dw. house 
(Richard Jones) and fields, p.Llanfechan, to wife Eleanor for life subject to 
repayment of £500, then to children John, Edward and Elizabeth.  Rents etc. 
of Domengastell fach, the Wern and Tyn y street and part of Squennant farm;  
2 ms. or dwhouses (Edward Foulkes, Harry Humphreys);  3 ms. etc. in 
village of Llanfechan (Dd. Bembow, Griffith Jones, John Vaughan);  piece 
(John Lewis);  3 pieces (Samuel Williams);  TY Gwyn and lands (Thomas 
Richards and testator), p.Llanfechan);  2 pews in p. church of Llanfechan to 
wife Eleanor and son John for her life, then to John.  Died 12th March 1837.  
Probate 16th June 1837 

vi.  16-17 April 1838 
1.  Robert Maurice Bonnor Maurice of Pentrenant, co.Salop, esq. 
2.  Eleanor Evans 
3.  John Evans 
4.  John Williams 
5.  Thomas Longueville Longueville, gent. 
Exchange of pieces Maes y Bron Llwyd (6a. 39p.), part of Dolfawr (1a. 3r. 
5p.) (Evan Sidlow) to 2. and 3. For part of Dol issa (2a. 13p.), Piece above 
the Road (1a. 1r. 29p.), Green Piece (1a. 1r. 14p.) and Dol Moody (2a. 2r. 
29p.), p.Llanfechan 

vii  27 March 1844 
1.  John Edwards, gent 
2.  Eleanor Evans 
3.  John Evans 
4.  Thomas Ward, gent. 
5.  C.J. Blunt 
Release and further Mortgage for £200 on Ysquenant. To uses. 
Dorse  :   
a.  31 July 1860 
1. H. Tudor; John Donne  2. John Evans  3. J.W. Dod of Cloverley, co.Salop, 
and Thomas Hugh Sandford of Prees, esqs.   4. R.J. Croxon     
5.  John Jones of Oswestry, gent. 
Assignment of Mortgage  
b.  10 Sept 1863 
1.  T.H. Sandford     2. Digby. Cayley, Brompton, co.York  
Assignment of Mortgage 
c.  26 April 1884 
1.  T.H. Sandford; Digby. Cayley   2. Edward Williams, Oswestry, gent.     
Assignment of Mortgage 
 
Attached notice 23rd Jan 1884 of solicitors on behalf of Edward Williams, 
Oswestry, to sandford and Cayley that Domengastell Estate is conveyed to 
Williams to secure £1,000 etc. 
 
Attached notice 10th Aug 1916 of National Provincial Bank, Llanfyllin, that 
moiety of T.P. Evans in Talwrn farm and Mill were conveyed to bank by 
mortgage. 
 

M/D/BOM/1/34 Plan of Domengastell Estate.  Scale  :  6 chains = 1 inch 
 

1860 

M/D/BOM/1/35 1.  John Evans, Domengastell, p.Llanfechain, gent. 
2.  Revd. Edward Evans, Llanfihangel 
3.  Edward Williams, Oswestry, gent. 
Mortgage for £1,000 and interest on property in schedule including Domengastell 
House, Domengastell fach house (pulled down), Squennant House, Mount 

23 Jan 1884 
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House, the Boar’s Head, Red House etc. (208a. 1r. 35p.) 
With attached notice 23rd Jan 1884 by solicitors of 3. 
 

M/D/BOM/1/36-37 Report and valuation with schedule of property and covering letter. 
 

27 Jan 1893 

M/D/BOM/1/38 1.  Edward Williams Vaughan, p.Oswestry, co.Salop, gent. 
2.  Revd. Edward Evans, Llanfihangel (beneficial owner) 
3.  Thomas Longueville, Llanforda Hall, co.Salop;  William Fletcher Rogers, 

Oswestry;  Revd. Walter Charles Edward Kynaston, Hardwick, esqrs. 
Transfer of Mortgage of £5,000 to 1. from 3. at request of 2. 
On properties specified in M/D/BOM/1/35 : Domengastell House and fields 
(John Hughes Jones), Squennant House (Thomas Jones), Squennant bach 
(Thomas Tudor), Mount House (Richard Morris),  The Boar’s Head (Hugh 
Davies), Red House (David Edwards), 2 cottages ‘Sycamore’ (William Jones), 
Ty gwyn (Edward Parry), Tynymaes cottage (Richard Hughes) and enclosures 
(named, with areas) 
  
Dorse  : 

18th Mar 1919 
1.  Thomas Longueville 
2.  Thomas Longueville;  Rt. Hon. George Ralph Charles, Baron Harlech; 

Walter Roger Owen Kynaston, Hardwick, esq. 
Assignment of £4,000 and £1,000 mortgages on above property 

 

1 April 1893 

M/D/BOM/1/39 Probate of will of Revd. Edward Evans, Llanfihangel Rectory. 
Bequeaths real and personal estate to wife Elizabeth (sole executrix). 
Probate (PPR) 25th January 1900 
 

19 July 1893 

M/D/BOM/1/40 Probate of will of Elizabeth Evans, Tynyllan, Llanfechain, widow 
Appoints sons Edward and Thomas Pughe Evans as executors.  Devises 
Domengastell farm with Squennant laborer’s cottage, The Mount and Tynmaes 
cottages, 3 fields Caean [Caeau] Bach Mrs. Osborne (Isaac Jones and Thomas 
Williams), p.Llanfechain, The Dingle Brynmawr smallholding to son Edward and 
Talurn, Talurn Mill farms to Edward and T.P. Evans in common.  Tynyrwtra 
farm to T.P. Evans with share in the Cantrebedd Slate Quarry, Abergynolwyn, 
co.Mer., to both etc. 
Died 18th November 1910 
Probate  :  23rd January 1911 
 

 

M/D/BOM/1/41 Specification of works required in proposed alterations to the Mount, 
Llanfechain, for T. Pughe Evans.  By J.D. Ward, architect, New Brighton. 
 

May 1911 

M/D/BOM/1/42 Particulars of the Domengastell estate 
 

1913 

M/D/BOM/1/43 Administration of the estate of Thomas Pughe Evans dec’d of Llanfechain.  Died 
30th Oct 1916. 
 

14 Dec 1916 

M/D/BOM/1/44 1.  Edward Evans, Holbeach, co.Lincoln, surgeon 
2.  Ethel Moreton Edwards and Mary Ellen Edwards, The Mount, Llanfechain, 

spinsters 
Tenancy agreement of The Mount 
 

14 July 1917 

M/D/BOM/1/45 1.  Edward Evans, Llanfechain, esq. 
2.  John Edwards, Tynllan, p. Llanfechain, farmer 
Agreement for sale of Tynllan and 3a., cottage adjoining, 2 cottages near, and 
small piece. 
 

20 Sep 1920 

M/D/BOM/1/46 1.  Thomas Longueville of Llanforda, esq.; Rt. Hon. George Ralph Charles, 
Baron Harlech; Walter Roger Owen Kynaston, Hardwick, Ellesmere, esq. 

2.  Edward Evans of Maesyllan, p.Llanfechain, surgeon. 
Reconveyance 

 

22 April 1921 

M/D/BOM/1/47 1.  Edward Evans of The Mount, surgeon. 
2.  John Christopher Bull, Church St., Oswestry, solicitor 
Mortgage for £250 on Domengastell 

20 July 1921 
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Dorse  :   
30th September 1921  :  Further Mortgage for £50 
 

M/D/BOM/1/48-50 Covering letter and bill 
 

 

M/D/BOM/1/51 Acknowledgement (draft) by E. Evans of receipt of £50 
 

30 Sep 1921 

   
M/D/BOM/1/52-101 Loose Legal and Probate Papers  
   
M/D/BOM/1/52 1.  Oliver Lloyd of Prees Vawr, co.Denb., gent. 

2.  Robert Lloyd of same, gent. 
Marriage Articles after marriage of 2. with Anne dter of 1. 
Conveying m. etc. (T)yddyn yn y mynydd and (closes), 4 parcels of arable called 
…… parcel of arable and wood ground called ----nen, 1 other and pasture called 
Cae Crwn, …..and pasture Cae Evan, 1 parcel of meadow called….., parcel of 
arable and wood ground called Cae Haidd, 1 ….Cae’r graig, arable and wood 
ground,  parcel of arable Erw faine……, co.Denb. 
Consideration  :  that 2. provides meat and drink for 1. and wife Cathterin pays 
…to Edward ap Hugh of Lloran, co.Denb., £3 to Rowland Charles and … already 
paid by 2. to … late servant of Robert Edmond, debts ….(? of 1.) 
Other terms. 
 
Dorse  :  lengthy pedigree of Hugh Lloyd of Guilsfield (o Gegidfa) and Catrin, 
his wife, by Rhys cain 1593 from books (drwy help llyfrau) of Guttyn \owain, 
Evan Brethtir, Gruffudd Hiraethog and Willian Ll(y)n, penkerddiaid, ‘o 
gelfyddyd cerdd dafod Richard ap Edward gwr bonheddig a John Wyn vn llawiog  
:  a chan wraig Mr Humfr’ Griffies ofranjarth [Braniarth now Broniarth ] cessyn 
i fenthig y cerdjachau hyn’ 
 
(The deed is obscured by an oval of newspaper 1776 in the middle portion used 
as a repair bandage) 
 

-- 25 Charles II 
(1673-4) 

M/D/BOM/1/53 1.  Edward Evans of Llanerchvrochwell, co.Mountgomery, gent. 
2.  Evan Griffith of Llanvechan, butcher 
Bond in £60 to pay £30 and interest 
Unattested. 
 

10 Jan 1683 

M/D/BOM/1/54 1.  Edward Evans 
2.  Gabriel Lloyd at his house in Poole [Welshpool] 
Letter requesting ‘two words’ of 2.’s mind touching the Com and deposition in 
2.’s custody.  Will wait on 2. tomorrow morning. Humble service to 2. and wife, 
1.’s aunt. 
Dorse  :  legal jottings 
 

10 July 1684 

M/D/BOM/1/55 1.  Edward Evans of Llanerchvrochwell, co.Mountgomery 
2.  John Evans of same, his brother 
Letters of Attorney for all rents etc. due from Evan Griffith, butcher, from lands 
etc. in Llanvechan 
With memorandum of debts. 
  

2 July 1692 

M/D/BOM/1/56 1.  Walter Vaughan of Llanvechan, co.Mount., gent. 
2.  John Thomas of Bodvach, yeoman 
Mortgage for £20 of parcel called Cam bylle 
Recital  : 

23rd March 1683/4 
1.  Walter Vaughan (party) 
2.  Stephen Evans, Ystymgynon;  David Williams, Rhywlas, co.Mont., gents. 
3.  Humphrey Meredith, Mayne, gent. 
Marriage Setttlement of 1 with Prudence, dter of 3.  £70 portion.  
Conveying m. etc (of 1.) in Llanvechen with parcels called Cae yn ymyl Ty 
Evan ap Roger, cae canol, y Fron fechan, Erw yr Skybor, Bryn Issa, bryn 
Canol, bryn ucha, Cam bylle, Erw maes y groes, gweirglodd tir y boll, Erw 
Wenith and Lle’r’ gweirdir.  

2 Feb (1696) 
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M/D/BOM/1/57 1.  John Davies of Ystymgynan and Reignald Davies of Mathraual, [Mathrafal], 

gents. 
2.  Elizabeth Morris of Llanvechen, spinster 
Lease of Possession of m. or tmt. Tythyn Maes y Brynllwyn and closes called 
Cae oddiar y ty, y vâch lâs, y wern, Maes y Brynllwyn bâch, Cae tan y ffordd, 
cae tan y tþ, Clwtt yr Ayrefre, y wern ynglan yr Afon, Pen y bont and Dôl pen y 
bont, t.Ystymgynan [p.Llanfechain] (William Price) 
(Torn in half) 
 

25 April 1705 

M/D/BOM/1/58 1.  David Davies, t.Bodynfolle, p.Llanvechan, co.Mount., gent. 
2.  Edward Evans, t.Tre yr Llan, same p., gent. 
Bond in £40 that 1. and wife Catherine and heirs will permit 2. and heirs to use 
sill and sitting-place in p. church of Llanvechan. 
Recited that 1. has submitted after a suit in Exchequer touching an assault and 
battery and that the place is before a sill on the South wall of the church between 
1st and 2nd benches below the seat of Roger Trevor esq. and near or under the 
gallery with back on South wall. 
 

23 Mar 1733 

M/D/BOM/1/59 1.  Robert Roberts of p.Llanfechan, co.Mount., shoemaker;  Jane, his wife 
2.  Morris Richard of Coed Y Clawdd Ucha, t.Brithdir, p.Llanrhaiadr, same co., 

yeoman 
Mortgage (by Fine) for £65 on m. and tmt. Gwern Wyan with fields etc. Y Cae 
Tu Kefen y Ty, Pen draw y Cae, Yr Erwfedwng, Cae r Rill, Erw Wernog,  
Gwerglodd y fron,  Yr Yard, Y Clyttie and Cae bach, t.Tre’rllan, p.Llanfechan, 
co.Mount. (now of 1.) 
Dorse  :  receipt 7th April 1762. of £35. 
 

19 Mar 1747/8 

M/D/BOM/1/60 1.  Morris Richard, yeoman (ptf.) 
2.  Robert Roberts and wife Jane (deforcs.) 
Fine (Great Sessions) of 1 m., 1 garden etc. in t. Tre’rllan, p.Llanfechan.  £40 
  

21 Mar 1748 

M/D/BOM/1/61 1.  Robert Roberts of p.Llanfechan, shoemaker 
2.  William Evans, Main, farmer 
Bond in £280 to pay £140 with interest. 
(in 2 pieces) 
 

31 July 1771 

M/D/BOM/1/62 1.  Robert Roberts of p.Llanfechan, shoemaker; Jane, his wife;  John Morris, 
Llwynglas, p.Llanrhaiadr yn Môchnant (only surviving child and heir of 
Morris Richard, Coed y Clawdd ucha etc.) 

2.  William Evans, Main, farmer 
Lease of Possession of Gwern Wyan with fields (named) 
 

30 July 1771 

M/D/BOM/1/63-64 1.  Robert Roberts of p.Llanfechan, shoemaker; Jane, his wife 
2.  William Evans, Mayn, gent. 
3.  Thomas Daniel, Llanfechen, gent. 
Assignment of Mortgage for £150 on property in M/D/BOM/1/59. 
Recitals  : 
• Further Mortgage, 28th Nov 1767, between Roberts and John Morris  :  £100 

due and further £20 
• Assignment of Mortgage 30th-31st July 1771, between same, for £128 
 

11 Feb 1779 

M/D/BOM/1/65 Will of Robert Roberts of Llanfechen, shoemaker 
Devises to wife Jane m. or tmt. Gwernwyan, p.Llanfechan, with household 
furniture, ready money and personal effects for life subject to payment of £150 
mortgage and interest to Thomas Daniel etc.  Devises same m. on her decease to 
nephew Thomas Edwards of Ystymcolwyn, blacksmith.  I guinea to kinsman 
David Roberts. 5s. to sister (of last) Catherine.  I guinea to Frances and 5s. to 
Mary, testator’s sisters.  Best cow that wife dies possessed of or £5 to Robert 
Chery.  2 best feather beds etc. at wife’s decease to niece Mary Bryan.  
Remainder to nephew Thomas Edwards. 
Executors  :  Thomas Edwards and Thomas Daniel 
Probate (ST. Asaph) 8th April 1785. 
 

11 Feb 1779 

M/D/BOM/1/66 1.  Edward Evans, Glanfrogan, p.Llanfechan, co.Mont., gent. 20 Oct 1785 
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2.  Thomas Williams, Penniarth, p.Mifod, husbandman 
Lease for 6 years of m. or tmt. Domengastell and 3 small pieces Erwgams 
(Thomas Pugh) and 2 small fields Domengastell fach, p.Llanfechen 
Rent  :  £100 yearly 
Other terms 
 

M/D/BOM/1/67 1.  John Jones of Montgomery, ironmonger 
2.  Thomas Pugh of Talwrn, p.Llanfechan, gent.;  Sarah, his wife (dter. of 

Nathaniel Griffiths, p.Myfod, dec’d. 
Surrender of moiety of ☺ of m. etc. in p.Buttington (late of Richard Jones),  m. 
etc. in p.Buttington (late of Evan Cadwalader) and 5 pieces in same (late of 
Richard Atcherley, gent.) - all now 1 tmt. (in tenure of --- Evans, widow of 
Moses Evans);  moiety etc. (where John-ap-Evan-David-Goch dec’d dwelt), t. 
Penniarth, p.Myfod;  closes etc. called Croft William, y Llwyn, Cae Llen, Y Cae-
wrth-y-groes, Y Werglodd-tan-y-sarn;  moiety of Y Wergloddole adjoining Croft 
William;  moiety of said Y Werglodd-Ddole adjoining parcel of meadow of 
David-ap-Richard called Werglodd Cae Dwgan - all t. Penniarth, p.Myfod (in 
tenure of William Rowlands);  and moiety of m. etc. or cottage in t.Rusnant, 
p.Llanisilio. 
Consideration  :  £210 
(Torn in half) 
 

4 Mar 1786 

M/D/BOM/1/68 Notice from ‘your landlord’ to Thomas Williams to quit m. etc. in p.Llanvechen. 
Dorse  :  copy of ‘an old Genalogy’ of the Evans family. 
 

14 Sep 1793 

M/D/BOM/1/69 1.  Thomas Daniel, Main, p.Myfod [Meifod], co.Mont., gent. 
2.  Thomas Edwards of Llansaintffraid, blacksmith (devisee and heir at law of 

Robert Roberts, shoemaker) 
3.  Edward Evans, Glanfrogan, p.Llanfechan, gent. 
Assignment of Mortgage of £250 (£150 to 1. and £100 to 2.) on property as in 
M/D/BOM/1/59.  Recitals in and of M/D/BOM/1/63-4 and M/D/BOM/1/65. 
  

2-3 July 1797 

M/D/BOM/1/70 1.  Thomas Edwards of Llansaintffraid, co.Mont., blacksmith 
2.  Edward Evans, Glanfrogan, p.Llanfechan, gent. 
Lease and Release in Fee of m. and tmt. etc. Gwernwyan etc., t.Tre yr llan, 
p.Llanfechen. 
Consideration  :  £400 
 

24-25 Mar 1799 

M/D/BOM/1/71 Probate of will of Edward Evans of Domengastell 
Probate : 16th June 1837 
 

18 Sept 1835 

M/D/BOM/1/72 Will (2 extractions) of Edward Evans, Glanfrogan issa, p.Llanfechan, gent. 
Devises £600 mortgage debt to personal representatives of William Evans of 
Main, p.Myfod, dec’d, on ms. etc. Domengastell and Ty yn y Street otherwise 
Pwlly fronllyn and piece of common or waste, t.Ystymgynnon, p.Llanfechan 
(testator and John Thomas) devised to son Thomas Evans and friend John Jones 
of Llys, p.Llanfechan, gent.  for 10 years to allow £20 yearly to son Edward 
Evans and to apply to rest of rents etc. to discharge of £470 part of mortgage debt 
and £200 to dter. Elinor etc. and residue to son Edward for life etc. 
Power to Edward to convey annuity in jointure and to charge estate with 
provision for younger children. Power to Edward to occupy said premises on 
agreement with Thomas Evans and John Jones to pay £100 yearly to repay 
mortgage debt of £470 and £200. 
£100 to brother Henry Evans charged on m. etc. the Wern, p.Llanfechan (testator 
and Robert Davies, cooper) and on m. etc. Domengastell fach and 2 fields, 
p.Llanfechan (John Thomas and Elizabeth Davies).  Devises both properties to 
son Edward with option to Henry Evans of having same for life etc. 
Appoints £200 with interest to same under a power in testator’s -  
Marriage Settlement, 12th-13th June 1758, between  
1.  Edward Evans, gent (father, dec’d); Edward Evans (testator)  
2.  Gabriel Hughes, gent;  Sarah his wife (both dec’d);  Elinor Hughes, spinster 

(dec’d.)   
3.  Humphrey Parry and Charles Humphreys, gents.   
4.  Timothy Edwards and John Evans, gent.   
5.  Richard Hughes, gent. 

7 Feb 1798 
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conveying ms. etc. in p.Hirnant (estate of Gabriel and Elinor Hughes) to 4. for 
500 years to uses. 
Recital of - 

Lease and Release 19-20 July 1796 
1.  Edward Evans (testator) 
2.  Thomas Evans (son) and wife Magdalen 
3.  John Jones, relating to Glanfrogan Issa. 
Now charges same with £100 each to Elinor and to grandson Thomas Evans 
etc. 

Devises £200 secured by testator on mortgage of estate by Thomas Edwards, 
p.Llansaintffraid, blacksmith, to dter. Elinor 
Devises the Brook tmt., p.Llanfechan, to same for life while unmarried - on her 
marriage then to John Jones in trust for son Thomas Evans for life.  Best milking 
cows to dter. 
2 beds etc. in testator’s room to son Edward 
Rest of household goods to Elinor 
£130 part of personal estate to be applied to repayment of £600 mortgage debt. 
Inventory to be made. 
Devises the Fron and Cae issaf, t.Treyrllan, p.Llanfechan, to son Edward, and 
piece of common, t.Lledrod, p.Llans\intffraid. Purchased from John Bishton esq., 
Commissioner, and rest of personal estate to Edward. 
Executors  :  sons Thomas and Edward. 
Probate with codicil (St. Asaph) 11th June 1800 
 

M/D/BOM/1/74 Codicil of Edward Evans of Glanfrogan Issa, gent. 
• Devises Domen Gastell and Ty’n y Street etc. to son Edward with power of 

bequeathing, conveying same to children or, if no lawful issue, to nephews or 
nieces, children of his brother Thomas or sister Eleanor etc. 

• Bequest of property to Thomas Evans and John Jones to pay off £450 debts to 
be void on repayment 

• Empowers son Edward to settle annuity on his intended wife 
• Elizabeth Tannatt of Gelli, co.Mont., or any future wife with fortune of 

£1,000.  Also empowers Edward to charge Domen Gastell and Ty’n y Street 
(up to portion brought by wife) for younger children. 

• Devises Gwern Wyon to Edward subject to payment of £200 mortgage 
bequeathed to testator’s dter. Eleanor 

• 2 wainsctotted pews in p. church of Llanfechen which testator lately erected 
(details) to son Edward and heirs. Also 1/16th share of Llangynog Mine, held 
by testator under Lease in partnership with Richard Rocke, Clopton Prhþs and 
others. 

• All commons etc. in t. Tre’r llan allotted to testator, to son Thomas and heirs 
 

30 Nov 1799 

M/D/BOM/1/75 Abstract of M/D/BOM/1/72-74 
 

 

M/D/BOM/1/76 Extract of M/D/BOM/1/72-73 as far as relates to Miss Evans 
 

 

M/D/BOM/1/77 1.  Humphrey Parry Dorsett, Plas Ucha, co.Denb., esq. 
2.  Thomas Clemson, Crickheath, p.Oswestry, co.Salop, famer (brother and heir 

at law of James Clemson of Morton Hall, p.Oswestry, farmer, dec’d);  
William Clemson of Buckley Farm, p.Shrawardine, farmer 

3.  Edward Evans of Llanfrogan issa, p.Llanfechan 
Lease and Release of m. or dw. house, barn, garden and close with the meadow;  
and piece called Werglodd Brook (2a. 1r. 17p.), p.Llanfechan, co.Mont. (Robert 
Davies, tenant). 
Consideration  :  £205 to 1. from 3. 
Recitals  : 
i.  1st Aug 1793 

1.  Humphrey Parry Dorsett; Bell, his wife 
2.  Revd. William Roberts; Lewis Jones, gent. 
Conveyance after Fine of said property to uses 

ii.  22-23rd Nov 1803 
1.  Humphrey Parry Dorsett 
2.  Revd. William Roberts; Lewis Jones, gent. 
3.  Thomas and James Clemson 

9-10 Sep 1806 
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Conveyance to uses of same. 
 

M/D/BOM/1/78 1.  Edward Evans, town of Llanfyllin, gent. 
2.  William Evans, Garthberyr, co.Denb., gent. 
Bond in £400 to pay £200 and interest 
 

28 May 1819 

M/D/BOM/1/79 Will of Sarah Pugh of Talwrn, co.Mont., widow 
Recital of deed Declaraing Uses of a Fine, 23rd Feb 1824 
1.  Thomas Pugh (late husband); testatrix 
2.  Richard Griffithes, gent. 
3.  Edward Baxter and Edward Evans, gents. 
Conveying m. or tmt. (then and now John Pugh), p.Llandisilio, for 500 years with 
power to testatrix to borrow up to £200. 
Testatrix has borrowed £160 from Baxter on bond and now directs Baxter and 
Evans to raise £200 to pay off debt with remainder to dter. Eleonora, wife of 
Edward Evans.  All personal estate to Eleonora (sole executrix) 
Dorse  :  ‘Grandmother’s Will’  (i.e. of Revd. Edward Evans)  
 

24 May 1827 

M/D/BOM/1/80 1.  Sarah Pugh of Talwrn, p.Llanfechain, widow 
2.  Edward Baxter, Bellandeg, p.Manafon, co.Mont., farmer 
Bond in £80 to pay £40 and interest. 
 

23 Sept 1828 

M/D/BOM/1/81 Petition in Chancery 
Edward Evans of Tomengastell, p.Llanfechen, co.Mont., farmer, relating to 
partnership of John Jones, dec’d. and Robert Price dissolved in 1808 and of Jones 
with orator as maltsters and hop dealers to 1823 at Llanfyllin 
 

? 1828 

M/D/BOM/1/82 Schedule of deeds etc. relating to Domen Gastell, p.Llanfechan, property of Mr 
Edward Evans (1786-1832) 
 

 

M/D/BOM/1/83 Will of Edward Evans of Domengastell, p.Llanfechen, co.Mont., gent 
• Devises m. etc. formerly the Boars Head now Tyn y Llan (Thomas Richards), 

m. etc. (Edward Kynaston), m. etc. the Mount (David Ellis), dw. house etc. 
(Richard Jones) and fields usually part of the Boars Head tmt. (now of 
testator), p.Llanfechen, to wife Eleanor for life subject to payment of interest 
on £500 on same; on her death to children John, Edward, Sarah, and Elizabeth 
according to wife’s will. 

• Devises rents of Domengastell, Domengastellfach, part of Squennant farm 
and the Wern and Ty’n y Street, 2 ms. or dwhouses (Edward Fouks, Harry 
Humphreys), 3 ms. etc. in the village of Llanfechen (David Bembow, 
Catherine Ellis and Jane Davies), piece (John Lewis), 3 pieces (sister Eleonor 
Evans), m. etc. Squennant and 5 pieces (Samuel Williams), m. etc. Ty Gwyn 
(John Jones), p.Llanfechen, and 2 pews in p. church to wife and son John 
Evans, and on her decease to last alone, subject to debts etc. 

• To dters. Sarah and Elizabeth chest and drawers, bedstead and hangings, 
feather bed, bolster etc. each.   

• Farm stock to wife and son John (executors) 
 

5 June 1834 

M/D/BOM/1/84 1.  Edward Evans of Domengastell, gent 
2.  Sinah Griffiths the younger of Skroogan, p.Llangedwin, co.Denb., spinster 
Bond in £200 to pay £100 with interest 
 

28 October 1834 

M/D/BOM/1/85 1.  Edward Evans of Domengastell, gent 
2.  Sinah Griffiths the younger of Skroogan, p.Llangedwin, co.Denb., spinster 
Bond in £200 to pay £100 with interest 
 

14 January 1835 

M/D/BOM/1/86 1.  John and Eleanor Evans of Domengastell, p.Llanfechan 
2.  Edward Baxter of Belan-deg, p.Manafon, co.Mont. 
Bond in £600 to pay £300 and interest. 
 

16 August 1838 

M/D/BOM/1/87 Mr Thomas Evans in account with executors of late Edward Evans of 
Domengastell.  Receipted 1839 
 

1837 

M/D/BOM/1/88 John Evans of Domen Gastell, dec’d  :  particulars of mortgages with short  
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description of properties part of testator’s estate. (1830-53) 
 

M/D/BOM/1/89 Mr John Evans of Domengastell, in account with Richard J. Croxon 
 

1847-53, 1872-74 

M/D/BOM/1/90-1 Cause in Chancery  :  Evans v. Bibby  :  amendments in Bill 
 

n.d. 

M/D/BOM/1/92 Receipt  :  Holywell Union to Revd. Edward Evans of £6 11s. 6d. poor relief. 
 

26 Nov 1856 

M/D/BOM/1/93 Receipt  :  John Davies to Revd. Edward Evans for plastering at the vicarage 
house. 
 

1 Nov 1856 

M/D/BOM/1/94 1.  Sir Watkin Williams Wynn of Wynnstay, co.Denb., bart 
2.  Revd. Edward Evans of Llanfihangel 
Lease of cottage and garden at Cefncleisiog, p.Llanfihangel [-yng-Ngwynfa] 
year-to-year. 
Rent  :  £3 10s. yearly 
(In 2 pieces) 
 

 

M/D/BOM/1/95 Will of Robert Evans of Glantanad, p.Llanrhaiadr ym Mochnant, co.Denb., 
farmer 
 

18 Sept 1873 

M/D/BOM/1/96 Counsel’s opinion as to powers possessed by Mr. T.O. Lomax and Mrs. Lomax 
 

16 June 1879 

M/D/BOM/1/97 1.  Revd. Edward Evans, the rectory, Llanfihangel, co.Mont. 
2.  John Morris of tawrn, p.Llanfechain, farmer 
Bond in £240 to pay £120 without interest. 
 

12 Oct 1887 

   
M/D/BOM/1/98-101 Miscellaneous wills 

 
 

M/D/BOM/1/98 Rough drafts of the will of Richard Hopkins of Letty yr Eos, p.Llanfihangel yng 
Ngwynfa. 
 

1836 

M/D/BOM/1/99 Copy of will of Ann Jones of Maesygarnedd, p.Llanrwst, co.Denb, widow. 
(2 pieces) 
 

31 Oct 1849 

M/D/BOM/1/100 Will of Robert Williams of Brynperfedd, t.Garthgarmon, p.Llanrwst, co.Denb, 
farmer 
 

26 May 1854 

M/D/BOM/1/101 Copy of will of Henry Jones of Berthengam, p.Llanasa, co.Flint, miner. 
Plan    (3 pieces) 
 

4 October 1856 

M/D/BOM/1/102 Banns certificate  :  Jane Humphreys of p.Llanfyllin and John Pryce of 
p.Llanfechen  (torn) 
 

11 July 1837 

M/D/BOM/2 Correspondence and personal papers, probably 
accumulated by Edward Evans and antecedents. 

 

 

M/D/2/1-11 Miscellaneous correspondence mainly to Evans family 1673-1712 & 
late 18th c. 

M/D/BOM/2/1 1.  Edward Smalman 
2.  Mr Dauid Jones, rector of Llanbadarn, Rads 
Letter  :  desired by Mrs Earsley of Ludlowe, a good friend of 2., to have made a 
good progress into 2.’s parish and to have mediated a peace between her son-in-
law Edward Gilley and Anne Jones of Disserth p., etc. but desires 2. to send for 
the woman and endeavour to reconcile the difference (further details of matter 
concerning maintenance of their children).  Hopes to see 2 at Knighton on the 
13th etc. 
 

4 January (16)73 

M/D/BOM/2/2 1.  John Euerard, London 
2.  Mr Edward Evans, Trevenant, Guildsfield nere Welsh Poole 
Letter  :  received 2.’s of 19th yesterday but Capt. Herbert being out of town since 
Feb. 1. cannot satisfy 2. in any manner without acquaintance with persons which 

23 March 1679/80 
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2. names viz.  Sir George Jeffryes or Sir John Trevor.  May be above a month 
before return;  now at Hull, Yorks. on business.  Will acquaint him of 2.’s letter 
 

M/D/BOM/2/3 1.  M.D. (‘Madam’) 
2.  Mr Edward Evans, Trevnant, Guilds-field near Welch-pooll 
Letter  :  since 2. seems to desire the continuance of 1.’s correspondence 2. will 
see that by speedy answer 1. intends to trouble 2. with it.  Expects two letters 
from 2. because 2. has more time and 1. has so much business ‘as to crack my 
brains’ on own account or that of his lady’s etc.  Does not forget old friends  :  
2.’s civilities to 1. when he was ‘in that purgatory bromly’ house has made the 
most impression.  The young lady that 1. is now with is a great fortune and just 
marriageable etc. (complains of shortage of servants as those her have ‘all 
flead’).  2.’s old love cousin Elin has lately met with one of the numerous sort 
(i.e. the servants).  Urges 2. to come or send servant.  Has not time to tell story 
how her love after an engagement has turned her off. 
Good natured and true friend ‘M:D’ 
 
Dorse  :  2 May 1681  :  draft reply from Evans 
Received letter about February 17th and sent an answer, not heard since etc.  If no 
reply Evans intends to write to Mr Totnalls lest M.D. is removed from ?’Aldron 
Bakes’ or that M.D. and lady are marched after some brave blades into some far 
countries.  Had planned to visit in May but now dissuaded.  Thinks will not come 
at all this summer.  Promises himself a sight of famous city of London yet if 
lives.  Hopes for M.D.’s comfortable correspondence giving intelligence of 
‘Brother’s Gang’.  Not answered Mr. Devon’s letter nor heard from him or the 
family. M.D.’s hints in last letter about disappointing of ‘Bladder’ are after some 
engagement between her and her love Evans desires to hear of. 
Much obliged to humble servant. 
 

- January 1680/1 

M/D/BOM/2/4 1.  M.D.  
2.  Edward Evans, Treuenantt, Guildsfield p. 
Letter  :  custom of 2.’s country in not answering letters so soon after receipt 
agrees well with 1. etc.  Not had a great share of crossgrained fortune  :  death of 
old friend Mr Allen etc.  Geese that 2. sent to Bromly spent very well ‘especially 
my Lady turners and the black recorders’.  Not to blame for making so much 
interest, there being likely to be so great again for £2,000 or £3,000 and a pretty 
beautiful housewifely gentlewoman besides will do very well when you catch 
them both together etc.  Wishes satisfaction in proceedings but desires 2. to 
remember the old party so far as not to discover their enemies etc.  In return 
assures 2. that new friends shall strive to oblige 2.  Desires confirmation by third 
post at latest.  M:D 
P.S.  :  had designed to give 2. the dishonourable title of ‘my Valintine’ because it 
was 1.’s fortune to draw 2.’s name from many others but loth to do it till knows 
whether 2.’s leisure will permit acquaintance.  Requests news of Mrs. Pegy and 
of 2.’s seal as thinks letters have been opened.  If 2. can think of a more 
convenient place to leave letters then desires to know.  Requests to know when 2. 
will be in town - expects him about Easter as does Mary Gibbons who will by 
that time, 1. supposes, produce either a godson or dter. for 2.  So big with child as 
can tumble.  Hopes she will not lose her little one ‘as the black recorder did’ - 
seems her child was white when born but if it had lived would have been almost 
of her complexion but the son and heir is gone and there is an end of him. 
 
Dorse  :  notes for reply  :  one of Sophocles’s enemies ‘vide love’ (references to 
Mr. Allen, Mesdames Betty and Amy, and ‘Agnes married’).  Notes of letters 
received 3rd April, 6th June and 18th July. 
 

26 Feb (?1680/1) 

M/D/BOM/2/5 1.  William Mayon, London 
2.  Edward Evans, Trevenant, Guildsfeild, to be left at Mr. Evan Gwyn’s, Welch 

poole 
Letter :  kind love etc.  Received 2.’s letter of 31st December.  Would have 
written sooner but hindered by business.  The fowl was brought to ‘our’ house 
and Presilla carried one to Thomas Griffith with the cloth they were put in etc.  
She enquired after fowl sent by 1. to Mr Roberts and got David Griffith the 
plasterer to go.  They had received them but knew not from whence they came.  
Their cousin desired to be heartily remembered to 2.  Poor David Griffith next 

25 Feb 1681/2 
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day fell from the house and was killed.  Presilla remembers her service to 2.’s 
father and mother and love to 2. Etc. 
P.S  :  the cook put the fowl on paste and made an excellent pie and ‘our friend’ 
at the eating of it drank a merry cup in remembrance of 2.  Has just received 2.’s 
letter of 22nd February mentioning death of John Meredith.  Not heard of it.  
Presilla will send word if dead or not. 
  

M/D/BOM/2/6 1.  William Mayon, The Black Boy in Bethlem, London, friend 
2.  Edward Evans 
Letter : love and remembrance to 2.’s mother.  Sister Prisilla also remembers her 
due respects to her and 2. and has sent her a little sugar loaf and a pound of best 
tobacco by Mr. Lloyd the carrier etc.  She has also enquired of John Meredith - 
told he was alive and at the Bellow, Woode Streete.  Prisilla desires to be 
remembered to all her friends. 
 

11 Mar 1681/2 

M/D/BOM/2/7 1.  M.D. Ingoldfield 
2.  Mr. Edward Evanns, Black Swan, Viller Street, Yorkbuildings, London 
Letter  :  complains of 2.’s silence.  Has lately been in London and understood by 
Eliot that 2. was to come to town etc. Asks that any letter be directed to Mrs. 
Elizabeth Powels, widow, in Spinhamland [co.Berks.]  1 is still with ?hunt near 
Newbury. 
 
Subscribed apologies by Aaron  ?  for damage to seal. 
Redirected to Evans at house of Mr. Evan Gwynn, Welch Poole, Monts. 
 

6 June (16)85 

M/D/BOM/2/8 1.  John Jones, cousin 
2.  Mr. John Evean (Brongain) 
Letter  :  has sent several letters to 2. but not had answer.  Has opportunity to 
send Mr. Bates and asks 2 to send the  legacy by him for 1.’s sister has been a 
charge to 1 for 3 years etc. 
Kinsman ‘att command’.  Kind love and service to 1.’s aunt and all cousins. 
 

20 April 1704 

M/D/BOM/2/9 1.  Walter Griffithes 
2.  John Evans, Brongain (to be left with Edward Hughes of Llanuechan) 
Letter  :  received letter from Cousin Trevor by which 1. understands 2. expects 
an abatement of the £76.  Took 2.’s silence for acceptance of proposal and did 
not proceed etc.  Must needs part unless 2. will give £76 for . must pay debts etc. 
- resolved to be let it in parcels before 1 will abate the price. 
Desires speedy answer and last year’s account. 
 

20 Sept 1711 

M/D/BOM/2/10 1.  Walter Griffiths, London 
2.  John Evans, Brongain 
Letter  :  received 2.’s by carrier and understands that William, 2.’s brother-in-
law, expects his money unless1. gives him a bargain as Mr. Muckleston had 
which 1. will not give and perhaps William may repent raising his money from a 
placeso well secured etc.  Requests 2. that all things be as they are and that 
William be paid first or last as he pleases after Muckleston etc.  If William insists 
on money then 1. asks 2. to enquire of the Shrewsbury merchants that will draw 
their bill upon any merchant in London etc. (details and arrangements of 
account).  Service to 2.’s wife, father and mother, brothers, sisters-in-law. 
 
Dorse  :  draft reply  :  William willing to leave money at interest but whenever 
he has a mind will have it in one entire sum.  If cousin Treuor and Grifiths are 
against sending the bond up for the gentlemen’s security then Evans believes he 
can prevail with him to take sister Atkinson and bond etc. 
 

29 Jan 1711/12 

M/D/BOM/2/11 1.  T.E. (?Thomas Evans) 
2.  Mr. Richard Edwards, Fellow of Jesus College, Oxford 
Letter  :  received 2.’s this day.  Had pleasure of seeing and hearing Dr. W. on the 
1st but not a word of his going to London - supposed that he intends to go there 
before Easter.  Parliament will soon be dissolved and the Rt. Revd. Will retire to 
his ‘countrey seat or pallace’ where his chaplain will probably wait upon him.  
Hope last letter contains sufficient answer to all other articles.  Plato observed, 1 
thinks rightly, that the compendious address to wealth was not to increase 
possessions but to lessen desires - but time to conclude ‘Dywedyd i Bader i 

Thurs, 5 March – 
(late 18th C) 
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Berson’ 
 

M/D/BOM/2/12-23 Correspondence from Revd. Walter Davies (Gwallter Mechain) 
and to Revd. Edward Evans and Thomas Evans of 

Glanbrogan-isaf. 

1799, 1831-48 

   
M/D/BOM/2/12 1.  Walter Davies, Myfod [Meifod] 

2.  Mr Edward Evans junior, Glanvrogan 
Letter  :  requests 2. to come to Myfod church next Sunday morning - will be a 
sacrament but 2. can wait a few moments.  Will find 2. dinner.  Compliments to 
2.’s father and sister, brother and family. 
 

31 Oct 1799 

M/D/BOM/2/13 1.  Walter Davies, Manafon 
2.  Mr E(dward) Evans  
Letter  :  has opportunity of writing this by Miss Evans of Glan Vrogan Uchav.  
Called in at Oswestry at the beginning of March to see Mr. Jones Croxon and 
happy to find the Chancery affair at a standstill.  Expects Mrs. Evans feels more 
easy etc.  Received letter last week from William Dodd of Llanfyllin  :  angry that 
1. does not take better (?care) of Robert Edwards who is nearly blind.  Asks 2. to 
make a weekly allowance from next Thursday if 2. goes to Llanfyllin market.  
Will repay.  Will help Edwards  with his parish allowance but his parish must not 
know of it.  His father who gets 20s. a week is a hardhearted fellow etc.  If 2. sees 
Dodd then to tell him 1. received letter but no other.  Dodd said 1. was no 
gentleman for not answering - could not answer a letter never received.  United 
regards to Mrs. Evans and 2.’s young family. 
 

25 April 1831 

M/D/BOM/2/14 1.  (Walter Davies, Manafon) 
2.  Revd. Edward Evans c/o Mr. John Roberts, Llanrhaiadr, Oswestry 
Letter  :  glad to receive 2.’s letter as puts 1. at ease about his health.  Had 
apprehension 2. had caught cold etc.  Regards to Mr. Roberts - 1. will write to 
Mr. Penson [the architect] to hasten his coming to Llanrhaiadr as 1.’s accredited 
agent to settle the affairs of the mill and pigs etc. 
Mr John Steele in a delusion when he doubts whether the mill belongs to 1. or 
him etc. for a single day beyond his own life etc. 
Richard Davies brought valuation  of the articles and said Roberts agreed to 
prices - amounted to £28.  Wrote last night to vicar of Llanarmon that would take 
articles at the prices except the Worthington articles (specified) as 1. wished to 
have more time to enquire whether Dr Worthington had left them as heirlooms.  
Mr Evans wished to know if 1. would take to the Charity Land held by Steele.  
He would release them to 1. on condition of paying ½ year’s rent from Lady Day 
next etc.  Rejoices that 2.’s church was tolerably well filled on Sunday on 2.’s 
debut  :  preach the Gospel and if they desert then it will not be 2.’s fault.  Wishes 
2. had waited upon Mr Williams re. Sacrament to the sick rather than write to 
him.  Has spoken to Williams to exchange duty for Sacrament Sunday with 2. 
etc.   
Mr Evans, Ty’n y Maes, offered 1. his team to carry out the manure on the Pen-y-
walk field or any other glebe.  Can 2. ask ‘your relative’ to make good his offer?  
Thomas Hughes at the Vicarage will find a man to fill the cart etc. 
New rector was at Manafon before ’us’ with his lady on Thursday.  Went off next 
morning.  Said he would write soon to say how house ought to be cleared for 
reception of rector and family.  Asks 2. to take a walk in the vicarage garden next 
time a-walking.  Wrote to Thomas Hughes, gardener to Richard Davies, to 
employ a rustic labourer to clear out the faeces from ‘the place’ in the garden etc.  
Told him to apply to Mr J. Roberts for the  labourer’s money etc.  Lady of ‘the 
Office for General Information’ enquires after 2. 
P.S.  that clerk can tell 2. of an old man about a mile from the Llan who wished 
to have the sacrament when 1. was there.  The rainy Monday morning prevented 
1. walking there.  Read and pray with him.  Mr. Williams to administer 
Sacrament. 
 

‘Friday night’  
(1 Dec) 1837 

M/D/BOM/2/15 1.  W(alter) Davies, ‘Manafon etto’ 
2.  Revd. Edward Evans, Llanrhaiadr, ‘Y Cymro glân’ 
Letter in Welsh  :  Intend coming themselves and have sent two dry cows (!) for 
the care of Tomos Huws - mother cow on 14th instant.  Expects 3 loads of ?mew 

6 March 1838 
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(o fûd)  on 15th (Dydd Iau, Difiau Llanfechain).  Hope coal fire will be ready by 
then and asks 2. and Mr. Roberts to send someone to fetch it with money to pay 
until 1. can repay it.   
Suggests that when whitewashing the kitchen puts a little yellow ochre in it to 
avoid overwhitening the lime so that it is the colour of thick cream from Glan-
Tanad’s pastures when dry.  Suggests a little ochre to start and testing it on table 
(or board : ‘o fwrdd’)  and to add butter if still too white etc. 
Letter continues in English  :  expected that T. Hughes will spread the manure 
well on Cae pen y walk.  When well dried a thorned hurdle drawn across it will 
complete the work etc.  Jane and domestics will follow the train of waggons on 
Thursday 15th.  Mrs Davies and 1 intend going for a few days to Crosswood to 
wait Jane’s permission to proceed. 
Asks 2. to say at the coach that 1. will pay for meat and ale for the person who 
brings the cows’ supper and breakfast etc.  Some of T. Hughes’ articles might be 
removed before 14th to make room but Hughes should be there to guard the house 
at night.  Best respects to Mr. and Mrs. Roberts and 2. 
 

M/D/BOM/2/16 1.  W(alter) Davies, Llanrhaiadr 
2.  Revd. Edward Evans, Capel Garmon, Llanrwst 
Letter  :  Mrs. Evans of Domen Gastell came this morning with 2.’s letter to her 
of 17th. and found 1. unwell.  Common sense tells 1 that an incumbent quitting a 
living for another quits his claim to every emolument on the day he accepted the 
other etc. and that Lewis had no power to let farms beyond own incumbency 
which was at an end when Lewis accepted Llanbrynmair.  If 2. had acted as 
worldly-wise as others then would have given notice to each tenant to attorn on 
the day Lewis accepted the other etc.  2. says that ½ year’s rent not due till 30th 
November - what an odd year 2. has, seems to know nothing of the legal division 
of the year etc.  Patch up this affair as 2 is able and try to be sharper in future.  
Hears 2 has consented to pay for fixtures in the Glebe house.  Does 2 not 
recollect the fixtures at Manafon and Llanrhaiadr?  How the polished grate in the 
drawing room had been removed into Staffordshire which was afterwards 
returned without any remonstrance from 1. 
Somebody complained 2.’s predecessor should have cut a field of wheat before it 
was ripe to secure the crop.  Perhaps he had a right to cut wheat sown by himself.  
1. succeeded at Manafon in early part of July  :  there was on the glebe a field of 
wheat ripe in September.  The executors of the late incumbent sold the whole 
crop without 1. objecting as 1. understood such a case had been established by 
customary usage. 
PS.  That 2. would do right to follow Mr. W’s advice to consult Mr. Griffith of 
‘Ll.’.  He would be the person to send his usual messenger to each of 2.’s tenants 
to attorn and be accountable for rent from October or September 1838 until the 
end of the year etc. 
  

23 Nov 1838 

M/D/BOM/2/17 1.  Walter Davies, Llanrhaiadr, near Oswestry 
2.  Mr Thomas Evans, esq., Glan Brogan isa, Llanfechen 
Letter  :  indebted to 2. for 2 letters and for fine hare and couple of rabbits.  Sends 
‘some Goods’ that have not been kept in 1.’s shop for several years - never 
approved of jingling rhymes upon tombstones. 
Dorse  :  ‘Sacred In Memory of Eleanor Evans of Glanbrogan…’ (d. 13th May 
1838 age 75) and rhyme ‘Hael ydoedd wrth lly… dylodi,  A hael nef ei haddef hi.’  
etc. 
 

24 Jan 1842 

M/D/BOM/2/18 1.  Walter Davies, Llanrhaiadr 
2.  Revd. E(dward) Evans 
Letter  :  2 escaped away without 1. seeing him on the banks of the Tanad.  
Schoolhouse at Ysbytty is out-of-repair and Lord Mostyn is all alive about it and 
wishes to have repairs without delay and offers to pay half if those who present to 
next vacancy have the other.  Seems very fair and liberal to 1.  1. offered to pay 
this half rather than apply to strangers.  Mostyn has had an estimate from Edward 
Davies of Yspytty, a building agent, who he believes very capable.  (Specifies 
needy repairs estimated at £6).  Requests 2. to ride to Gallt y Celyn and tell Mr. 
Jones he has been recommended to 1. by Edward Jones of Ruthin, attorney, as 
capable and intelligent in country affairs and to ask him to come with 2. to 
Yspytty to settle the repairs with Davies etc.  Glad to have a letter on the 
schoolmaster on the subject etc.  Is Edward Davies a son or nephew of the Robert 

8 Feb 1848 
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Davies who kept the inn, or of Griffith Davies, brother of Robert ?   1.’s race is 
nearly running out.  Regards to Mrs. Evans and 2. 
Troublesome acquaintance. 
 

M/D/BOM/2/19 Account of Ysbyty Ifan School in Report of the Education Commissioners 1847 
as copied by Walter Davies of Llanrhaiadr.  With note from Davies to Revd. 
Edward Evans, Capel Garmon  :  can it be wondered that Lord Mostyn is in such 
a huff at such a report?  Hoped that Mr Jones of Gallt y Celyn would assist Evans 
in this undertaking which Davies has pressed on Evans.  When Davies hears will 
inform Lord Mostyn.  Requests names of schoolmaster  :  is he that paid £35 by 
madam Bevan’s Charity Trustees and for a dozen of Lord Mostyn’s tenants ? can 
hardly be but Davies cannot see that there are two separate charity schools in this 
village.  Davies is in dark hitherto. 
 

n.d. 

M/D/BOM/2/20 1.  W(alter) Davies, Llanrhaiadr 
2.  Revd. E(dward) Evans, Capel Garmon, Llanrwst, co.Denbs. 
Letter  :  has received packet of bills (Yspytty School house) and is obliged for 
2.’s trouble etc.  Total as cast by Edward Davies is £16 19s. 3d., half to be paid 
by Lord Mostyn’s agent according to his lordship’s own proposal.  How can 1. 
transmit his £8 4s. 7½d. ?  Thinks Post Office will not cash orders from Oswestry 
and Denbigh is far and very inconvenient.  Will 2. and Mrs Evans be coming 
soon?  Miss E. of Maerdy told 1 so yesterday evening going to church etc.  
United best wishes to 1. and Mrs Evans. 
 

(18) Sept 1848 

M/D/BOM/2/21 1.  Walter Davies, Llanrhaiadr 
2.  Revd. Edward Evans, Capel Garmon  
Letter  :  at length comes herein the PO order, not drawn on Llanrwst as 1. 
requested but Conway.  Grieved at this but cannot help it as it must add to 2.’s 
trouble who has taken so much on account of the schoolhouse at Yspytty.  
Encloses bills which 2. sent etc.  Trusts to Edward Davies for correctness of each.  
The glazier’s runs so high but that is fault of his profession and he draws the bill 
in such algebraic characters that 1. cannot decipher them.  Requests to know if 2. 
had a pleasant ride down ‘Conway’s foaming flood’.  Jane unites in best regards 
to Mrs. Evans and 2.  Thousand thanks. 
 

3 Oct 1848 

M/D/BOM/2/22 1.  Walter Davies 
2.  Revd. Edward Evans, Manafon  
Letter  :  Destined to quit this place before 2. returns from Llanfechain.  Mr 
Vaughan came over last night and takes ‘us’ off this morning.  Has put out the 
registers on the bardic chair in the parlour should either be wanted.  Scarcely 
knows what to say about Sunday School.  2. may as well keep aloof until return.  
Gives address if anything pressing occurs as John Vaughan esq., Penmaen 
Dovey, Machynlleth, would be obliged to 2. going now and then to the rectory 
and observe the housekeeper and gardeners, to enquire what newspapers and for 
2. to take them for perusal.  Next Sunday morning Welsh, evening English, and 
so alternatively. 
 

Tuesday morning 

M/D/BOM/2/23 1.  Walter Davies 
2.  Revd. Edward Evans, Glan Tanad Isa, at the Coach Inn, Llanrhaiadr 
Letter  :  1.’s dullness in hearing led him to understand that 2. would be going to 
St. Kedwyn’s church [Llangedwyn] but those who hear better tell him that 2. and 
Mrs. Evans are going to St Doewan’s [Llanrhaeadr-ym-Mochnant] fane to 
worship.  If so requests oration to 2.’s old flock and afterwards to take pot luck at 
the vicarage and wait to hear Mr. Williams’s evening lecture. 
 

‘Dygwyl Ifan’ 
29 Aug ? 

M/D/BOM/3 Personal and other family items and miscellanea 
 

 

M/D/BOM/3/1-17 Personal items of Revd. Edward Evans (1813-99) 
 

 

M/D/BOM/3/1 Admission (St Asaph) of Edward Evans BA as deacon. 
 

2 July 1837 

M/D/BOM/3/2-3 Admission of Edward Evans BA as priest and licence. 
Dorse  :  exhibited 1847-77 

6 May 1838 
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M/D/BOM/3/4-6 Grant (St Asaph) of office of curate in p. church of Capel Garmon, co.Denb., and 

licence and declaration of conformity. 
  

23 Oct 1838 

M/D/BOM/3/7  Memorandum of declaration of reading in. 
 

25 Nov 1838 

M/D/BOM/3/8 Collation (St Asaph) of Revd. Edward Evans to vicarage of Llanasa, co.Flint, 
void by death of Henry Parry, and memo of reading in. 
 

16 Feb 1855 

M/D/BOM/3/9-11 Certificates of subscription to Articles and Declaration of Conformity, and 
Mandate of Induction. 
 

16 Feb 1855 

M/D/BOM/3/12 Memo of reading in. 
 

 

M/D/BOM/3/13  Collation of Revd. Edward Evans to rectory of the p. of Llanfihangel yn Gwynfa 
[-yng-Ngwynfa], co.Mont., vacant by cession of Revd. Wynne Edwards, clerk. 
 

6 Aug 1860 

M/D/BOM/3/14-16 Mandate, certificates of Subscription and Declaration of Conformity. 
 

 

M/D/BOM/3/17 Memo or reading in 
 

23 Sept 1860 

M/D/BOM/3/18-33 Personal items of Edward Evans and Thomas Pughe Evans, 
sons of Revd. Edward Evans. 

 

   
M/D/BOM/3/18-22 Scholar’s certificates of Edward Evans at Llanfihangel-yng-Ngwynfa School and 

certificates of merit in Religious Knowledge 
 

1881-1885 

M/D/BOM/3/23-25 Scholar’s certificates of Thomas Pughe Evans at Llanfihangel-yng-Ngwynfa 
School 
 

1882-1884 

M/D/BOM/3/26-31 Wallet of Revd. Edward Evans containing : 
 

 

M/D/BOM/3/26 1.  T. Davies, chaplain, Penygoitan, Borth, co.Card. 
2.  Mrs Evans 
Letter  :  hope that 2. has found a friend to do her duties to enable Mr Evans and 
brother to go to Brixton on Monday or Tuesday.  Asks 2. to explain why 1. 
cannot take his duties on 10th. 
 

4 Sept 1876 

M/D/BOM/3/27 Note of grafts from apples ‘in the Abbey Garden’ sent to Domengastell 
 

1852 

M/D/BOM/3/28-29 Recipes for removing stains on clothes and for dry feet. 
 

 

M/D/BOM/3/30 Note of stones at main Quarry 
 

 

M/D/BOM/3/31 Cutting  :  ‘Tri hir a thoddiaid I Eglwys Newydd Capel Garmon (Cydfuddugol â 
Tudur Arfon yn Eisteddfod Capel Garmon, Mai 6ed, 1865) gan Ioan ab Gwilym, 
Trefriw’ 
  

1865 

M/D/BOM/32 Pocket Diary 1890 of ?Thomas Pughe Evans (farmwork, business, weather, 
personal) 
 

1890 

M/D/BOM/33 Book  :  ‘Master T.P. Evans, Rectory, 1899’ :  passages from the Bible, 
collections 1885-87 for North Montgomeryshire Primrose League. 
 

1899 

M/D/BOM/3/34-42 Pedigrees and notes  
   
M/D/BOM/3/34 Pedigree notes on Evans ancestors (mid/late 17th C) 

  
 

M/D/BOM/3/35 Portion of the ‘genealogie of John Powel now of London, marchant’ from Phillip 
ap Mericke of Trewern, co.Radnor.  With pedigree of Docwra family and 
illustration of arms.  
 

1633 

M/D/BOM/3/36 Descent of Edward Evans son of Lewis Evans (17th C) 
Appended note1836 that Edward was brother to John, purchaser of Glanbrogan 

 

20 



M_d_bom.doc 

and who lived at Cae Hywel, p.Llanfechan 
 

M/D/BOM/3/37 Descents of ?Jevan ap Llewelyn ap Einion, Dafydd ap Llewelyn ap Kylynnin (his 
brother) and Jenkin hir ap Jevan. 
 

after 1677 

M/D/BOM/3/38 An assessment for t.Llanerchfrochwell for the relief of poor parishioners, 
maimed soldiers etc. (names only; receipts not given) 
 

1679 

M/D/BOM/3/39 Small fragment of pedigree of will of William Kyffin of ‘Trverhiw’ [Trefriw, 
co.Caern.] 
 

 

M/D/BOM/3/40 Note regarding Edmond of Haddam, earl of Richmond, Owen Tudor and John of 
Gaunt . 
Dorse  :  ‘For his honoured Grandmother Ms. Frances Vaughan att Pentrepant’ 
 

 

M/D/BOM/3/41 Pedigrees of Charles 1 to Llywelyn ap Gruffudd from Dr. Powel’s History of 
Cambria. 
 

 

M/D/BOM/3/42 Bundle of pedigrees, related notes and papers for Evans, Pughe and other families  
(Many items in fragments) 
 

(19th C) 

M/D/BOM/3/43-74 Miscellaneous doggerel and poetry, notes  
   
M/D/BOM/3/43 Verses by Edward Evans  : ‘Barchedig Syr ych adail sydd ar wenydd beunydd 

boenus…’ 
 

27 Oct (?16)70 

M/D/BOM/3/44 Verses  :  ‘No, no, faire Heretique, it needs must be but an ill love in me and 
worse for thee..’ 
Dorse  :  ‘och fyth och aruth och oeri I merfron ar galon ar dorri…’ with 3 rough 
sketches of a cock an 1 of a horse. ‘Ano Dom, 71’ 
 

(?16)71 

M/D/BOM/3/45 ‘Englyn said to be written by the renowned warrior Bard Llywarch Hen…’ 
 

 

M/D/BOM/3/46 ‘Englynion wnaeth….’ gan Hugh Morris, in the hand of Griffith Williams. 
 

1782 

M/D/BOM/3/47 Versus  :  ‘yn ol eistedd yn y Gadair Eisteddais cefais, im cofio Gadair’ 
 

 

M/D/BOM/3/48 Jonathan Hughes, written by ?Griffith William  :  ‘Penhillion o Anogaeth I 
Blwufolion Eglwus fach (?)idad[io] Ei eglwus yr hon a Genir Ar Gwel yr 
Adeilad’  (Verses exhorting the parishioners of Eglwysfach to roof their church) 
Bear the practice signatures of Jane Williams and Richard Davies 
 

1783 

M/D/BOM/3/49 Englynion composed by ‘the Bard of Mechain, at the Congress of bards held at 
Bala, upon…The Intrepidity and watchfulness of a Fighting Cock’ (in Welsh) 
Dorse  :  addressed to Edward Evans, Domengastell, Llanfechain. 
 

 

M/D/BOM/3/50 ‘Can Newþdd a ganmoliaeth I gðn [?] tirrion Mr. Edward Evans, ô Lanbrogan 
yr hon âg ddadgeir ar Hunting the Hare’ by W. Davies [Walter Davies, Gwallter 
Mechain] 
 

 

M/D/BOM/3/51 ‘Can Newþdd sef Achwyniad Hen Langc Eisiau Gwraig.  Cenir ar Billy Rook is 
the boy Sir’ with short rhyme by Benjamin Birch. addressed to Edward Evans, 
Domengastell, near Llansaintffraid. 
 

 

M/D/BOM/3/52 William Williams ‘y Gweunydd o Bontscadarn Llanfihangel’  :  ‘Can newydd o 
ddiolch i Mr Evans Llanfihangel’ 
‘Dau benill a gyfansoddwyd a gydna byddiaeth i Mr Evanes Llanfihangel am 
anrhegu tylodion ei blwy a gwerth deuddeg Punt  o ddefnyddiau dillad Mesur 
Bellu March’  
Verse of thanks from Gwilym ap Eos. 
 

 

M/D/BOM/3/53 The Medicasters Plastography or the Corbeau’s Dream (Welsh) 
 

18th C 

M/D/BOM/3/54 Words of ‘A Funeral Hymn’ (English) 
 

n.d. 
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M/D/BOM/3/55 Doggerel  :  ‘Esqr. Limpo’  :  ‘says Dick to Tom Prim o’er a jug of good Beer…’ 
 

Early 

M/D/BOM/3/56 ‘Can Newþdd o anerchiad I Mr. Evans a Mrs. Evans ar enedigaeth eu mab, sef 
eu cyntafaneddig.  Mesur Robun yn swil’ gan Evan Williams (o’r) Waen. 
(Torn in half) 
 

mid/late 19th C 

M/D/BOM/3/57 Englynion from the Pentrefoelas Eisteddfod 
 

19th C 

M/D/BOM/3/58 Humorous poem ‘A Legende of ye Manor House’  : ‘Of all the dangers that 
beset, And peryles that befell, One Edward, and his Ladye Love…’ at the Manor 
House, Llanfyllin. 
Relates to the ‘Ladye’ ie. dter of rector;  mentions Edwards sister ‘Betsey’, father 
John Dugdale, and servingman Richard Pughe.  (For John Dugdale of Llwyn 
1821-1903 see Mont.Colls. 38, pp87-88 and Burke’s Landed Gentry.  ‘Betsey’ 
may = Rosy Elizabeth, and rector - Robert Williams MA. 1850-91.  
 

14 Feb 1871 

M/D/BOM/3/59 Flyleaf of volume bearing a recipe for a horse ‘that cannot make water’ and note 
of acreage in ts. of p.Llanfechen. 
 

n.d. 

M/D/BOM/3/60 Account of tithes arrears of persons in North Street, Coal….St., Limehouse, Mile 
End Green, Stepney, Poplar, Mills Street… 
  

1673-76 

M/D/BOM/3/61 ‘A Sermon of parson Holdin preched at the commandment of 7 theeues after they 
robbed him in praise of Theeues and thieuery’ 
With lists of townships (by hundred) in co.Montgomery (incomplete) 
 

mid/late 17th C 
(?1679) 

M/D/BOM/3/62 Section from notebook pp.9-20  :  jottings from Latin and Greek exercise books  
 

19th C 

M/D/BOM/3/63 Summons from Llanfyllin magistrates by warrant of the Council in the Marches 
of Wales to Thomas Davies, clerk, to appear at dwelling house of Dudley Wynne, 
Llanvilling, co.Mount., gent., 2nd April next, as plaintiff v. Thomas ap Evan, 
defendant. 
 

26 March 1674 

M/D/BOM/3/64 Petition of   ?   in Col. Herbert’s service, London, referring to Evan Griffith, 
butcher, a coin clipper and thief who pays no rent to petitioner etc, v. Sheriff of 
Monts. 
 

3 May 1690 

M/D/BOM/3/65 With note that Griffith ‘y Cigydd’ lived in a cottage where the school stands in 
Bwlchycibau, that clipped coins were found when the house was destroyed and 
that Griffith was hanged at Welshpool in 1691. 
 

(late 19th C) 

M/D/BOM/3/66 Statement for the Committee of Magistrates on part of Turnpike Trustees relating 
to Pontllogel Bridge (Abraham Howell, solicitor, Welshpool.  Recites history of 
bridge from 1803 and refers to Monts. Bridges Act 1820 etc.) 
 

1865 

M/D/BOM/3/67 Description of bounds of manor of Plas y Dinas comprising ts. of Llanvechan, 
Meliniog fawr, Lledrod and Cefn Llyfnog. 
 

n.d. 

M/D/BOM/3/68 1.  Revd. John McIntish, rector of Llanerful 
2.  Rt. Revd. Thomas Vowler, Bishop of St. Asaph 
3.  Rt. Revd. Conop, Bishop of St. David’s (patron) 
4.  Revd. William Lewis, incumbent of consolidated chapelry of church of St. 

John’s, Pontdolanog 
Deed of Annexation of tithe rent charges. 
 

-- 18-- 

M/D/BOM/3/69 Printed account for building the parsonage of St. John’s, Pont Dolanog 
 

 

M/D/BOM/3/70 Programme  :  The Annual Ball, Boar’s Head Inn, Oswestry, 15th Jan 1847 
Dorse  :  ‘R. Evans’ and ‘Mr. Evans, Domengastell’ 
(Torn) 
 

1847 

M/D/BOM/3/71 Prescription  :  J. Evans, Oswestry, for William Evans, addressed to Rev. E. 
Evans Llanfihangel rectory, Llanfyllin. 
 

7 Sept 1894 

M/D/BOM/3/72 Proof of printed photograph  :  Rev. Griffith Edwards (‘Gutyn Padarn’) MA., 15 May 1895 
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FRHS. 
 

M/D/BOM/3/73 English humorous poem, ‘Good morning darling boys, pray d’ye do…’ 
 

1 Jan 1881 &1882 

M/D/BOM/3/74 Letter (in ballpoint) 
1.  Huw A. Watson, Welcome Manor Balndford [Dorset] 
2.  Dr. Evans  
CLOSED 
 
 
 

n.d. 

M/D/BOM/3/75-101 Miscellaneous printed material 
 

 

M/D/BOM/3/75 ΕΠΙΚΤΟΤΟΨ ΕΝΞΟΡΔΟΨΝ ΚΕΒΝΤΟΣ ΘΕΒΑΙΟΙ Πιςαζ, ΘΕΦΡΑΣΤΟΨ, Η
πΧΟι ΧαζαΝΤυρεS, Μ.Τ. ΚΙΚΕΡΩΝΟΣ ωει τ Διαλοψθ, και ΠRοΙΚΟΨ ΗΡΑ
ΚΛΗΣ EPICTETI EHCHIRIDION, CIBETIS THEBANI TABULA, Theophrasti 
Characteres Ethici, M.T. CICERONIS de Exilio dialogus, ET PRODICI 
HERCULES, Cum Versione Latina. 
Oxford, Sheldonian Theatre (George West) 
(Badly damaged by mould). 
 

1702 

M/D/BOM/3/76 Llanfechain Parochial Church Fund  :  list of subscribers etc. 
 

1945 

M/D/BOM/3/77-78 sale particulars of household furniture, farming implements, hay and potatoes, 
stock, belonging to late Rev. Henry Parry, at the Vicarage, Llanasa. (2 copies, I 
with prices) 
 

10-11 April 1855 

M/D/BOM/3/79-97 Printed material found amongst sermons of Revd. Edward Evans (M/D/BOM/4/5) 
 

 

M/D/BOM/3/79-80 Nodweddau Amaethwr Llwyddianus (characteristics of a successful farmer) and a 
cutting on ‘Amaethyddiaeth’ 
 

 

M/D/BOM/3/81-82 List (2 notebooks) of communicants and attendances of Capel Garmon 
 

1842-1844 

M/D/BOM/3/83 Printed booklet, title-page and pp. 1-16 missing. Pp.75-80 uncut, concerning 
legislation bearing on brewing, malting, exportation of malt to Ireland and 
Scotland, officers of excise and duties, penalties. 50 Geo. III. 
Cover  :  ‘Eglwysrhos Ionawr 1857. Welsh.  Llanfihangel Sunday Library. 120 
(deleted) 111 ’  
 

 

M/D/BOM/3/84 PREGETH XXXI.  Y FLWYDDYN GYMMERADWY, &c. (from Isaiah LXI. 2) 
annotated by Edward Evans ‘Garmon Rhaiadr Jany. 9th 1822’ 
 

n.d. 

M/D/BOM/3/85 ESPONIAD BYR O’R SACRAMENTAU, SEF, HILOIADAUAC ATTEBION 
YSGRYTHUROL YNGHYLCH EGWYDDORION A DYLEDSWYDDAU Y 
Grefydd Gristionogol.  Gan y Parch. Griffith Jones, gynt Person Lladdowror 
(6fed argraphiad, Dolgellau, gan J.Pugh; dras C.J. Rivington, llyfr-werthwyr, 
Mynwent St. Paul, Llundain) 
  

1831 

M/D/BOM/3/86 (ANERCHIAD EGLWYSWR) AT IEUENGTID EI BLWYF,  MEWN PERTHYNAS 
I’W CADARNHAD (Bala, R. Saunderson) 
 

1837 

M/D/BOM/3/87-89 Casgliad o Bregetahu, &c. PREGETH I. MARWOLAETH TRWY BECHOD A 
BYWYD TRWY GRIST (and others), pp.1-82, 109-190.   Used by Evans and dates 
and places and sermons given. 
  

 

M/D/BOM/3/90 PREGETH, A DRADDODYD, IONAWR 20 1840, YN ANGLADD JOHN 
HAVARD, YSWAIN, LLAWFEDDYG, YM MHLWF LLANGELER.  Gan y parch. 
John Griffiths, Periglor Llangeler (Castellnewydd Emlyn, agraffwyd gan William 
Jones, Heol-y-bont, dd.) 
Title page in pencil  :  ‘W.E. Williams, Llanrhaiadr’. 
 

1840 

M/D/BOM/3/91 THOUGHTS SUGGESTED TO THE WRITER ON HIS ENDEAVOURING TO 
RECONCILE SOME TEXTS OF SCRIPTURE WITH OTHERS.  BY A [Quasi 

n.d. 
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added in MS.] PREDESTINARIAN LAYMAN. 
Cover in MS.  :  ‘The Revd. H. Evans from an old acquaintance but unknown, as 
the Author, 22nd Novr. 55’ 
 

M/D/BOM/3/92 Llyfr Gweddi i Dy Gweddi (ail argraffiedig gan Thomas Piper, ar werth gan 
Wertheim, Mackintosh a Hunt, 24 Paternoster Row, 1862) 
Dorse  :  notes by Edward Evans 
 

1862 

M/D/BOM/3/93 National Welsh Song-Book.  Cerddi Cymru, sef casgliad o :  Gerddi Goreu y 
Genedl, wedi eu dosranu yn dri dosbarth :  …..sef, casgliad helaeth o benillion 
I’w canu gyda’r delyn, gan Rhuddenfab (Llanfyllin, argraffwyd a chyhoeddwyd 
gan Lewis Jones 1866) 
Cover  :  ‘E. Evans’ 
 

1866 

M/D/BOM/3/94 Amddiffynydd Yr Eglwys (torn in half) 
 

Hydref 1881 

M/D/BOM/3/95 POEM ON “The Land of The Promise”.  BY DYFED THE REV. E. REES, A 
WELSH DISSENTING MINISTER, BUT NOT A DISESTABLISHER RENDERED 
INTO ENGLISH VERSE BY G.R.G. PUGHE, VICAR OF MELLOR, …. 
 

1901 

M/D/BOM/3/96 Fragment  :  ‘A venturous endeavour to rehearse Boyd-Dawkins’ “Welshman’s 
Origin” in verse’ by G.R.G. Pughe, vicar of Mellor 
 

1895 

M/D/BOM/3/97 The Guyoscope, vol. ii, no.13 
 

March 1898 

M/D/BOM/3/98 List of Subscribers of HM. Marriage at Melton Mowbray. 
 

27 Feb 1840 

M/D/BOM/3/99 ‘Berliner Tageblatt’  
 

4 Feb 1927 

M/D/BOM/3/100 ‘The Oxford University, City and County Herald’ 
 

10 Dec 1836 

M/D/BOM/3/101 Proofs 1934 (University Press, Oxford) of photographs : 
Hugh Owen Thomas;  The Lathe Room, Nelson Street (1885);  Charles 
Bradlaugh (1883);  Elizabeth Thomas;  Evan Thomas (1804-84); Hugh Owen 
Thomas and Robert Jones (1890);  and Hugh Owen Thomas (1891) 
  

 

M/D/BOM/3/102-39 Miscellaneous accounts (personal and farming) :   
Edward Evans of Llanerchfrochwel, his brother  

John Evans, and others. 
 

1685-1732 

M/D/BOM/3/102-103 2 notebooks (badly damaged)  : receipts of rents and other payments. 
 

Mid/late 19th C 

M/D/BOM/3/104 Notebook of J.P. Evans, Tyn llan, Llanfechain  :  rent notices, farming 
memoranda 
 

c. 1904 

M/D/BOM/3/105 Notebook of Owen Baxter (and others ?) containing  miscellaneous notes of 
receipt, recipes, addresses, notes of stock mating, recipe for artificial yeast, cure 
for diseases in fruit trees. 
 

1772-1832 

M/D/BOM/3/106 Funeral expenses of Edward Evans. 
 

1700/1 

M/D/BOM/3/107 Letter 
1.  Thomas Edwards 
2.  ‘Cosen John…’ 
Requesting money.  (2 fragments, incomplete) 
 

12 Aug 1702 

M/D/BOM/3/108 Receipts for expenditure on repair of barn at Nanthalon. 
 

1703 

M/D/BOM/3/109-139 Miscellaneous receipts (Edward Evans of Llanerchfrochwel , his brother John 
Evans of Bodran, and others) 
 

n.d. & 1685-1732 

M/D/BOM/3/140-159 Bundle of receipts for land tax for the parish of Llanfechain 
 

1721-1729 

M/D/BOM/3/160-163 Tithes receipts for p.Llanfechain from Edward Evans 1694, 1731-32 
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M/D/BOM/3/164 ‘Edwd. Evans Bill of an account and Chargis of my coming down to Tydburn’ 

(by way of Shrewsbury, Eavese [Ivesey] Bank, Casel Brymigam, Coleshill, 
Coventry, Dunchurch, Daintry [Daventry], Rosebr’, Saint all bunns, London, 
Ingate stone, Whitham [Witham], Colchester, Ipswich, Martlesham) 
 

1742 

M/D/BOM/3/165 Letter 
1.  David Morgan  to  2. Mr Evans, Glanvrogan, requesting 2 to send money with 
Ned Morris for 15 weeks in 1775 and 8 weeks in 1776 
 

n.d. (? 1776-7) 

M/D/BOM/3/166-168 Land Tax certificates of contractors from 24 June 1799 : Thomas Pugh 
  

1799 

M/D/BOM/3/169 Account of stock taken by Mr Evans from Mr Price on the dissolution (v. 1/81 
above) 
 

1808 

M/D/BOM/3/170 Fragment of promissory note from Evans, Llanfyllin, to Jones, Bachie Issa, 
p.Llanfyllin, farmer for ?£400 
 

1810 

M/D/BOM/3/171 Notice of sale of timber by auction, on Dommen Castell farm 
 

19 Mar 1912 

M/D/BOM/3/172 Account of expense at Domengastell (continued on the back of M/D/BOM/3/171) 
 

1816-1819 

M/D/BOM/3/173 Mr Evans’s malt account and goods bought at sale at White Lion 
 

1818-1826 

M/D/BOM/3/174-194 Bills and accounts on Edward Evans for building work 1808-16, 1821-23, 
including ‘town hall’ for Master Evans and Master Price (1812), Domengastell, 
‘Llanvechan’ (1814), Mount and the Llan (1815) 
  

1808-1823 

M/D/BOM/3/195 Bill of Jones on Mr Evans, Talwrn, Llanfechain, for malt, hops, ?wheat (paid 
1823) 
 

1818 

M/D/BOM/3/196 Summary of partnership between Messrs. Jones and Evans (farm produce) 
 

1808-1824 

M/D/BOM/3/197 Statement of account produced by Mr Jones’s executors 
 

1823-1824 

M/D/BOM/3/198 John Jones to Mrs Edward Evans  :  notice of quitting 1st May 1827 of dw. house 
and garden, p.Llanfechain, occupied by Robert Jones, pauper of said p., held by 
parishioners of Meifod under Evans. 
 

25 Sept 1826 

M/D/BOM/3/199 Certificate of release of John Pugh, Ty isa, Llansaintffraid, for Jane Owen. 
 

18 May 1827 

M/D/BOM/3/200 Notice of account due :  E. Edwards to John Owens, farmer. 
 

17 Oct 1827 

M/D/BOM/3/201 Notice to creditors and debtors of John Jones dec’d and Mr Edward ….. late of 
Llanfyllin, maltsters and hop dealers (see. 1/81 & 3/169 above) 
 

24 Sept 1827 

M/D/BOM/3/202 John Williams in account with Mr Evans 
 

1828-1829 

M/D/BOM/3/203-207 4 receipts and notes :   
• receipt from Edward Evans of Tomen Gastell of £50 from Revd. Robert 

Edward, 30th April 1830 
• promissory note of Edward Evans, Llanfillin, maltster, to Robert Roberts for 

£10, 31st Dec 1821 
• promissory note of Edward Evans, Llanfillin, to John Griffiths of Domgay, 

gent. for £100, 24th May 1816 
• promissory note of Edward Evans, Llanfillin, to Edward Roberts, Penybrin, 

p.Llanvechen, for £100, 13th Oct 1817 
 

1816-1830 

M/D/BOM/3/208 Grammar School, Oswestry  :  Master Evans’s account with Revd. Dr. Donne for 
tuition.  (torn in half) 
 

1831 

M/D/BOM/3/209-220 Miscellaneous receipts 
 

1844-1867 

M/D/BOM/3/221-246 Receipts for work etc. at Llanfihangel church 1862-64 and covering letter from J. 1862-1864 
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Jones, builder, Welshpool, 31st Oct 1864 to Revd. Edward Evans 
 

M/D/BOM/3/247-260  Miscellaneous receipts and bills 1868-74, 1879, 1898 
 

 

M/D/BOM/3/261 Note by Edward Evans concerning his father’s discovery of a charm devised by 
the ‘conjurer’ at Cann Office to make butter ‘come’.  With charm 
 

c.1870-1871 

M/D/BOM/3/262 Collection of englynion, sayings, religious verses, Welsh proverbs. 
On rear flyleaf :  ‘Robt. Thomas his book May ye 26th 1777’ ‘The gift of Waltar 
Davies’ and ‘John Jones’ 
Dorse  :  ‘(?) Walter Dauis (?) bid gwer…yr hwn…(?) 1797 …Glan…rogan 
Montgo….’ 
 

 

M/D/BOM/3/263 CYDYMETH IFIENGTID SEF CERDDI COWYDDAU ag Englynion tra dewisol 
nabuant yn Argraffedig yr rioed hyd eitha fy ngwi bodeth sef gwaith amriw ran o 
brydyddion cymru wedi gasglu gan Dafydd Evans, Llanfihangel. 
Inside board  :  ‘The gift of David Evans of Llanfihangel to Maurice Jones of 
Talwrn’ 
 

1785 

M/D/BOM/3/264 Pocketbook containing mainly receipts, apparently by a clerk to the assizes, rent 
collector. 
Refers to brothers Edward and Griffith, nephew Thomas, niece Margaret, sister-
in-law Catherin, and Elenor. 
 

?1675-1695 

M/D/BOM/3/265 Music notebook of William Lewis 
 

c.1827 

M/D/BOM/3/268 THE ADVENTURES OF Captain Robert Boyle, &c.  Title page missing. Pp. 1-
236 only.  Forleaf  :  ‘John Davies’ 
 

early 18th C 

M/D/BOM/3/269 Geographia Classica : THE GEOGRAPHY OF THE ANCIENTS So far described 
as it is contained in the Greek and Latin Classicks…..for the Use of SCHOOLs.  
2nd edn. (London for G. Browne 1717)  20 maps.  Unpaginated. 
Front board  :  ‘To the Revd. Mr. Evans the vicar of Llanasa from his humble 
friend John Paterson of Trelogan book of the HEICS and son of the late Lt. Genl. 
Sir Wm. Paterson KCSC’ 
 

 

M/D/BOM/3/270 Notebook containing ‘An Act for prevention of Fraudes and perjories’, ‘An Act 
for Collecting ye Duty ariseing by Hearth-money, by Officies to be appointed by 
his Matie’ 
With note of leases 1702, payments and receipts 1682-85, and rents from lands at 
Bwlch y Kibbau, Bodran etc. 
 

1682-1702 

M/D/BOM/3/271 ‘Act er mwy effeithiol attal halogedig dyngu a erhegu’ [to prevent corruption, 
swearing and cursing] 19 Geo.II 
Dorse  : ‘To the Revd. Mr Jones at Ysceifiog Flintshire’ 
 

 

M/D/BOM/3/272 (Thomas Pennant), A Tour in Wales (London 1778)  Unbound.  Title-page, 
i-viii and pp. 1-192 only.  Stained. 
 

 

M/D/BOM/3/273 Loose pp. 7-18 ‘General Description’ of agriculture in co. Caernarfon, possibly 
from Board of Agriculture, General View of Agriculture of North Wales (1794-
96) 
 
 
 

 

M/D/BOM/4 Sermons collected by and written by Revd. 
Edward Evans (1813 - 1899) (Welsh and English) 

 

 

 According to his obituary in Bye-Gones, 15th Nov 1899, Evans (d. 11th Nov, was 
born at Domengastell, p.Llanfechain, and was educated at Oswestry School and 
Jesus College, Oxford.  He became a deacon in 1837, a priest in 1838 and 
subsequently served as perpetual curate to Capel Garmon, co.Denb. (9/1838 - 
5/1855), vicar of Llanasa (15/4/1855 - 9/9/1860, co.Flint, and vicar of 
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Llanfihangel-yng-Ngwynfa (16/9/1860 - to death) 
 
The following sermons include not only those compiled by Evans himself but 
also sermons of others either written in Evans’s hand or surviving in their 
original autograph.  Identification of their original authors will prove difficult but 
the dates and places given on the great majority of them are sufficient to show 
that some were written by : 
 
1. John Jones, curate of Trelawnyd (Newmarket), co.Flint, 1712-31 
2. Robert Jones, vicar of Llanfor 1724-35 and rector of Llanycil, co.Mer. 1735-

46 
3. Robert Jones, rector of Nannerth, co.Flint, 1779-9 
4. John Price (son of Ellis Price, vicar of Holywell), vicar of Cilcain 1749-62 

and rector of Ysgeifiog, co.Flint, 1762-79) 
5. ?William Lewis, vicar of Pont Dolanog 1855-66, acting as curate of 

Llwydiarth 1854-59 
6. ?Peter Powell, vicar of Llanrhaeadr-ym-Mochnant 1735-47 (source : D.R. 

Thomas, The History of the Diocese of St. Asaph) 
7. Revd. Richard Pughe, vicar of Llanegryn. Co.Mer., 1786-1812, and rector of 

Llanfrothen and Beddgelert, co.Caern., 1812 - until he died on 11th Jan 1837 
(see Montgomeryshire Collections 24, pp.243-276) 

8. Richard Pughe, rector of Llanfihangel-yng-Ngwynfa, to 1858 (son of 7.) 
9. John Pughe, incumbent of Llanfihangel-y-traethau and Llandecwyn (d. 27th 

July 1861) 
10. ?Evan Evans, vicar of Pennnant Melangell 1826-31, Llanarmon-yn-Iâl1831-

51 and vicar of Betws-yn-Rhos 1851-58 (The History of the Diocese of St. 
Asaph,  p.85) 

11. ?Edward Newton Jones, vicar of Bagillt 1850-55 (brother of Hugh Jones, 
vicar of Holywell 1849) 

 
 

M/D/BOM/Box 1 Sermons  1696-1774,  1774-98,  1800-10,  1814-21 (110 items) 
 

 

M/D/BOM/Box 2  Sermons  1823-29,  1830-37,  1838-39,  1840-41 (159 items) 
 

 

M/D/BOM/Box 3 Sermons  1841-43,  1844-45,  1846-47,  1848  (190 items) 
 

 

M/D/BOM/Box 4 Sermons  1849-51,  1852-54,  1855-57,  1858-60  (106 items) 
 

 

M/D/BOM/Box 5 Sermons  1862-64,  1865-68,  1879-94  (106 items), undated sermons (Welsh and 
English) 19th C. (24 items), fragments of sermons (Welsh and English) (7 items),  
prayers and sermon notes (Welsh and English)  (12 items. 
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M/D/BOM/5 Records relating to the Pughe family  

   
M/D/BOM/5/1 Bound volume described ‘PEDIGREE. G.R.G. PUGHE’ (by page) 

 
 

1. Pedigree of G.R.G. Pughe 
 

 

2.-4. Pedigree of Pugh/Pughe family 
 

 

8. Description of arms of Muir family 
 

 

12. Genealogical notes and certificates concerning the Gould family 
 

 

14. Genealogical notes and certificates concerning the Withy family 
 

 

16. Letter :   
1. Thomas Gould, London    

 2. George Gould, Welch Pool, Monts.   
Referring to hamper, Harry, a vessel for which 2. has asked, his mother waiting 
for the ‘silk’ to send papers concerning the Irish estate etc., with details of the 
Gould family descent, Jane, the papers.  
 

25 July 1793 

18. Receipted bill on Mr Gould for resetting his rose diamond into a pair of 
loopearings 
 

23 July 1796 

22. (Conveyance)  Sunday…April, 13 Hen VIII 
1. John ap Rynald, free tenant of commote of Ystymmanner, co.Merionnyth 
2. Jeuan ap Tudr Baz of same commote 
of one ………..,  t. Mays Trefnant, near the house of Dd’ ap Jeuan ap Owen, as a 
site for building Tigurin…..Moilevrey Vechan. 
Latin. 
Dorse  :  ‘No.11’ (eaten by Mice) 
Transcript and translation by G.R.G. Pughe. 
 

1521/22 

24. Grant 
1.  John ap Reynald, free tenant of commote of Estymmenner, co.Meryon.  
2.  Dauit ap Jeuan ap Tuder, free tenant of same 
of 1 tmt. called y Vach gouch’ and tmt. called y Tithyn duy. 
Latin. 
Dorse  :  ‘No.8’ 
Transcript and translation by G.R.G. Pughe. 
 

1 Sept 1535 

26. Release 
1.  John ap Rees ap Ll’ ap Edn’ and Thomas ap Res ap Ll’ ap Edn’, free tenants 

of t. Maes trefnant, commote of Estimanner, co.Meryon’ 
2.  Dd’ ap Jeuan ap Owen, Gruff’ ap Jeuan ap Owen and Res ap Jeuan ap Owen, 

free tenants of same t. 
Of 12a. arable in same t.   
Latin. 
Dorse  :  ‘No.16’ 
Transcript and translation by G.R.G. Pughe. 
 

10July 1515 

28. Release 
1.  Jeuan ap Dauit Lloit ap Jeuan 
2.  Dauit ap Jeuan ap Owen 
Of 1 tmt. Erow Vadyn, t. Maies llen Gedrys [Maes llangedris, p.Talyllyn], 
commote of Estimanner, co.Meryon’ 
Latin. 
Dorse  :  ‘No.14’ 
Transcript and translation by G.R.G. Pughe. 

12 April 1532 

30. Grant 
1.  Gruff’ ap Ll’, free tenant of t. Maes Trefnant, commote of Estymanner, 

co.Meryon’ 
2.  Gruff’ ap Jeuan ap Owen, free tenant of same 

13 May 1521 
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Of tmt. Tythyn y bryn dan voylvre in same t. 
Latin. 
Dorse  :  ‘No.1’ 
Transcript and translation by G.R.G. Pughe. 
 

32. Grant 
1.  Lewis ap Hoell ap Owen, free tenant of commote of Estymmanner, 

co.Meryon’ 
2.  Dauit ap Jeuan ap Owen, free tenant of same 
Of part of tmt. y Tithyn bach, t. Maies Trefnant.  
Latin. 
Dorse  :  ‘No.15’ 
Transcript and translation by G.R.G. Pughe.  
 

12 May 1526 

34. Receipt 
1.  Res ap Hught ap Ress of Talyllyn, commote Estym’ etc. 
2.  Gruff’ ap Jeuan ap Owen, of same commote 
of £6 mortgage sum due on tmt. ytyddyn y llwyn, t.maestrefnant, said commote. 
Transcript by G.R.G. Pughe. 
 

8 Sept 1549 

35-36. Grant 
1.  Dd’ ap Gruff’ ap Jeuan ap Owen, free tenant of co.Merionyth’ 
2.  John ap Gruff’, 1.’s brother; and Ellio, his son 
Of tmt. tythyn y bryn dan voylvre t. Mays Trefnant, commote of Estymanner, 
which descended to 1. from his father Gruff’ ap Jeuan ap Owen. 
Letters of attorney to Jeuan ap Dd’ Lloid esq. 
Latin. 
Dorse  :  ‘No.10’ 
Transcript and translation by G.R.G. Pughe. 
 

1 Feb 1553/4 

37-38. Bargain and Sale 
1.  Rhys (Riseus) ap Jeuan ap Owen, free tenant of commote of Maystrefnant, 

commote of Estim’, co.Merion’ 
2.  Lewis (Lodowico) ap Dauid ap Dauid 
Of tmt. y ty inymaysgro, t.Maystrefnant etc. 
Latin. 
Dorse  :  Enrolled before John Rynold, clerk of peace to Great Sessions at Bala, 
co.Merioneth, 22nd April 1556, by Hugh ap Mered’, former clerk of peace 
‘No.12’ 
Transcript and translation by G.R.G. Pughe. 
 

25 Sept 1555 

39. Grant 
1.  Rhys ap Jeuan ap Owen, free tenant of commote of Maystrefnant, commote of 

Estim’, co.Merion’ 
2.  Lewis ap Dd’ ap Dd’ 
Of 2 parcels of land gwerne y venne and maysgroo, and 1 house called y votty in 
y nant dy, t. Maystrefnant etc. 
Dorse  :  enrolment before John Rinalde, clerk of peace, 12th July 1559, by Hugh 
ap Mered’, deputy clerk. 
Latin. 
Dorse  :  ‘No.6’ 
Transcript and translation by G.R.G. Pughe. 
 

6 July 1559 

40. Bond 
1.  John Dd’ Lloid of p. tala llyn [Tal-y-llyn], co.Merioneth, esq. 
2.  Dauid ap Jeuan ap Owen 
In £60 of quiet enjoyment of m. or tmt. Erw Vadyn, t.mays llangederus, commote 
Estim’, co.Merion’ 
Dorse  :  ‘No.3’ 
Transcript and translation by G.R.G. Pughe. 
 

1 July 1560 

42. Bond  
1.  Hughe ap Dauid ap Morgan of Pennant, co.Merioneth 
2.  John ap Gruff’ ap Jeuan ap Owen 
In £40 of peaceful possession of tmt. y tyddyn dv with parcel of land moylvre 

10 Oct 1566 
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Vechan, t.Maystrefnant, commote Estym’, co.Merioneth, without vexation etc. 
including 1.’s brother Morgan ap Dauid ap Morgan and their heirs. 
Dorse  :  ‘No.19’ 
 

44. Bargain and Sale 
1.  Hugh ap Dauid ap Morgan free tenant of t. maystrefnant,  etc. 
2.  John ap Gruff’ ap Jeuan ap Owen 
Of y Tythyn dv and moylvre Vechan 
Latin. 
Dorse  :  Enrolment in Great Sessions at Hardelegh [Harlech] 22nd Jan 1566/7 by 
Edward Johnes, clerk of the Peace.  ‘No.20’ 
 

10 Oct 1566 

46. Bargain and Sale 
1.  Rhys ap Jeuan ap Owen and Lewis ap R’ [=Rhys] ap Jeuan ap Owen, free 

tenants of t. maystrefnant,  etc. 
2.  John ap Gruff’ ap Jeuan ap Owen 
Of tmt. Nant yrvsgvr, t.maystrefnant. 
Latin. 
Dorse  :  Enrolment in Great Sessions at Hardelegh [Harlech] 21st Jan 1566/7 by 
Edward Johnes, clerk of the Peace.   
 

10 Jan 1566/7 

48. Release and Quitclaim 27 Dec 1573 
 1.  Lewes (Lodowicus) ap Rees ap Jeuan ap Owen of Maystrefnant,  etc., yeoman 

2.  Lewes ap Dauid ap Dd’ and Dauid ap Lewes ap Dd’ 
Of tmt. tythin y maysgroo and tirr gwern y venne, t.Maystrefnaunt, commote 
Estimaner, co.Merioneth, except via necessaria vulgarly called hwylfa 
Latin. 
Dorse  :  ‘No.26’ 
 

 

49. Bond 
1.  Hugh ap Howel ap John of maestrevenant;  Morgan ap John;  David ap Rice 

of Byarth Minin (or Miniw), p.Llanfihangel y Pennant;  Rhydderch 
(Rodericum) ap John ap griffith of maes Trevenant, yeomen 

2.  David ap Owen ap Rice of Cathley, same co., yeoman 
In £60 in accordance with mortgage for £30, even date, from 1. Hugh ap Howel 
ap John to 2. David ap Owen ap Rice, of m. etc. Tythyn y Bryn moy [1], 
maestrevenant (said Hugh, Roger Lewes, John ap Gruffith, Humfrey ap Owen 
and Morgan David) 
Dorse  :  ‘No.5’ 
 

29 Sept 1607 

50.1 Bargain and Sale 
1.  William Lewys Dauid ap Dauid, free tenant of t.maestrevenant, yeoman 
2.  John ap Gruffith David ap Howell 
Of m. or tmt. Tythyn gwerne y Venne and parcel of land maysygro, 
t.maystrevenant, commote Estymaner, co.merionnith 
Latin 
Dorse  :  ‘No.22’ 
 
 

20 Nov 1609 

50.2 Bond 
1.  William Lewys Dauid ap Dauid, of maysterevenant; Humphrey ap David ap 

Lewys ap Dauid ap Dauid of Byarthmeini;  Morgan ap John Dauid ap Rees of 
same, yeomen 

2.  John Gruffyth Dauid ap Howell of maysterevenant, yeoman 
In £40 of quiet possession etc. 
Dorse  :  ‘No.27’ 
 

20 Nov 1609 

52. Release and Quitclaim 
1.  Morgan ap Dd’ ap Morgan of Llanvihangel y pennant, co.Merionneth, clerk 
2.  John ap Gruff’ ap Jeuan ap Owen 
Of tmt. or m. y Tythyn duy, t.Maystrefnant etc.  
Latin 
Dorse  :  ‘No.7’ 
 

20 July 1579 

54. Release and Quitclaim 7 April 1581 
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1.  Lewes (Lodowicus) ap Jeuan ap David ap Lln’ of maystrefnant, yeoman 
2.  John ap Gruff’ ap Jeuan ap Owen 
If tmts. etc. y tythyn dw and moylvre vechan, t. maystrefnant, commote Estym’ 
etc. 
Latin 
Dorse  :  ‘No.9’ 
 

56. Release and Quitclaim 
1.  Lewes ap Dauid ap Dauid of maystrefnant, yeoman 
2.  William ap Lewes ap Dauid ap Dauid, younger son 
Of 2 ms. etc. Tythyn maysygro,  Tir gwerne y venne, Tythyn allt Ryfuth and 30a. 
arable yr erw goz, 1a. called maysygro and 1 summer house called brynne blayn 
y nant, t. maystrefnant, commote Estym’ 
Latin 
Dorse  :  ‘No.2’ 
 

8 Feb 1582/3 

60. Marriage Settlement 
1.  Lewes ap Dauid ap Dauid of maystrefnant, yeoman 
2.  John ap ap Jeuan ap mores and John ap Dd’ ap Lewis, yeoman 
before marriage of of Rhydderch (Rithericum) ap John ap Gruff’, son of 1., with 
Mary vz’ Owen ap Dd’ ap Lewis. Conveying m. etc. y tythyn duy, y tythyn bach 
yn y llwyn, Nant y Rysgwr and moyl vre vechan, t.Maystrefnant, to uses. 
Latin   
 

8 Feb 1582/3 

61. Bargain and Sale 
1.  David ap Owen ap Rees of Abergynolwyn, co.Merioneth, yeoman 
2.  Richard Tibbotts of same 
Of m. etc. Tythyn Y Bryn Moyl, maes Trevenant, co.Mer. (Rowland Owen., 
tenant) 
Consideration  :  £30 
Recital  :  29th Sept 1603 
1.  Hugh ap Howell ap John of Maes Trevenant yeoman 
2.  Dauid ap Owen ap Rees (party) 
Mortgage for £30 of said property (then or late of said Hugh and Roger Lewis, 
John ap Gryffyth, Humffrey apOwen and Morgan David) 
 

14 Aug 1623 

62. Grant and Feoffment 
1.  Lewis (Lodowicus) ap Dd’ ap Dauid of Maystreffnant, yeoman 
2.  William ap Lewis ap Dd’, his younger son 
Of tmt. etc. Tythyn gwern y venne and parcel of land tir y mays groo, t. 
maystreffnant, commote Estymaner, co.Mer. 
Latin 
Dorse  :  ‘No.13’ 
Enrolment 25th April 1580 in presence of Rhys Hughes esq., JP, and Robert 
Edward, clerk of peace, at the Great Sessions at Llanvor 
 

23 April 1580 

63. Mortgage 
1.  William Lewis of p.Llanvihangel y Pennant, t.Maestrefnant, gent.;  John 

William Lewis of same, son and heir apparent. 
2.  John Elisha, p.Towyn, yeoman 
For £25 of m. and tmt. Moylfree-fawr (William Lewis), t.Maes-trefnant, 
p.Llanvihangel y Pennant.  
 

9 Nov 1641 

64.1 Release and Quitclaim 
1.  William ap Lewys ap Dauid ap Dauid, free tenant of c.Merionnith, yeoman 
2.  John Gruffyth Dauid ap Howell 
Of property in 50.1 above. 
Dorse  :  ‘No.24’ 
 

11 Nov 1609 

64.2 Deed to Lead to Uses of a Fine 
1.  William Lewis David ap Dauid, Maestrevnant etc., yeoman 
2.  John Gruffith Dauid ap Howell of same, yeoman 
Of m. or tmt. Tythin Gwern y vennie and land Maes y gro, t.Maestrevnant  
 

10 Aug 1610 

65. Bargain and Sale 20 May 1642 
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1.  John Gruffeth Dauid ap Hoell’, Maestrevenant, co.Mer., yeoman 
2.  Richard Tybbotts of same t., yeoman 
Of ms., tmts. etc. Maes y gro, Gwern y fynne, closes called Kae yr gare gwenn, 
llain y groes and lands called y Keven, t.Maestrevenant, co.Mer. 
 

66. Marriage Settlement 
1.  John ap Hugh ap Rees of Dolgoch, co.Mer., gent 
2.  Richard Tibbotts of p.Llanbren mair, co.Mount., gent 
3.  John Tibbotts, Abergwynolwyn, co.Mer.;  Owen ap John of Dolgoch, 

co.Mer., gents. 
Marriage Settlement before marriage of Hugh Jones, son and heir apparent of 1., 
with Elizabeth Tibbotts, a dter. of 2.  £60 portion in goods. 
Conveying m. or tmt. Tythyn llwyn y vynwent, t.Maestrevnent, co.Mer., to uses 
(declared). 
 

18 April 1655 

67. Grant and Feoffment  
1.  Rytherch ap John ap Gruffith of Maestrefnant, p.Llanfihangel y Pennant, 

gent. 
2.  John Tybbotts of Llanbryn Mair, co.Mount., smith 
3.  William Tybbotts of same p. and Humffrey David ap Lewis of Maestrefnant, 

yeomen 
Of ms., lands etc. Tythyn Duy, Y Tythyn Bach yn y Llwyn, Nant y Rysgwr and 
moelvrevechan, in Maestrefnant, to uses in indentures 10th Sept. 1620 between 
same parties. 
 

7 Oct 1620 

68. Release and Quitclaim 
1.  Margaret vz’ Hugh of Llanvihangell, co.Mer., spinster, dter. and coheiress of 

Hugh ap Howell ap John of same, dec’d 
2.  Richard Tibbotts of Abergynolwyn, smith 
Of m. and tmt. Tythyn Bryn moyl, t.Maes Trevnant, specified in Mortgage, 29th 
Sept 1607, between Hugh ap Howell ap John and Dauid ap Owen ap Rees of 
Abergynolwyn. 
 

16 May 1624 

69.1 Release and Quitclaim 
1.  Agnes vz’ Hugh, p.Mechenlleth, co.Mount., spinster 
2.  Richard Tybbotts, Maestrevnant, p.Llanvihangel y Pennant, co.Mer., smith 
for all actions, etc. 
 

17 Dec 1628 

69.2 Release and Quitclaim 
1.  Agnes vz’ Hugh, p.Mechenlleth, co.Mount., spinster, a dter of Hugh ap 

Howell ap John of Llanvihangel y Pennant, dec’d. 
2.  Richard Tybbotts, Abergynolwyn, co.Mer., smith 
Of m. and tmt. Tythyn y bryn moyl, t.maestrevnant, in Mortgage, 29th Sept 1607. 
 

6 May 1628 

70.1 Release and Quitclaim 
1.  Hugh Rees of p.Llanvihangel y Pennant, yeoman; Margrett, his wife 
2.  Richard Tybbotts, Maestrevnant, said p., co.Mer., smith 
for all actions, etc. 
 

21 May 1628 

70.2  Bond (after 71.2) in £120 of quiet enjoyment of m. etc. 
 

10 May 1625 

71. Bond (after 69.2) in £130 of quiet enjoyment 
 

6 May 1628 

71.2 Release and Quitclaim 
1.  Marie vz’ Hugh, of Llanvihangel y Pennant (as in 69.2) 
2.  Richard Tibbotts, Abergynolwyn, co.Mer., blacksmith 
Of Tythyn y bryn moel, t.Maes Trevnant, co.Mer. 
Dorse  :  ‘No.29’ 
 

10 May 1625 

72.7 Bond (after 68) in £120 of quiet enjoyment (dated ?22 James.1 Scotland 57) 
 

7 ?May 1624 

73. Bond (after 65 above)  
1.  John Gruffeth Dauid ap Hoell’ 
2.  Richard Tybbotts 
in £4—to perform articles etc. 

20 May 1640 
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74.1 Fine (Great Sessions) 

1.  William Thomas ap Evan ap Hugh (ptf.) 
2.  Richard Evans and Elliewe, his wife;  John Lukas;  Richard John;  John 

Humffrey David;  Elizabeth, his wife; and David John (deforcs.) 
Of 1 m., 1 toft etc. in maestrefnant. 
Dorse  :  ‘No.18’ 
 

31 July 1654 

74.2 Fine (Great Sessions) 
1.  John Griffith Dauid ap Hoell (ptf.) 
2.  William Lewis Dauid ap Dauid (deforc.) 
Of 1 m., 1 toft etc. in maestrefnant.  £60. 
 

10 Sept 1610 

75. Release (after 89 below) 
1.  John Lloyd of Maesypandy, co.Mer., esq. 
2.  John Tibbotts of Abergynolwyn, co.Mer., gent. 
Of m. etc. Moel free vawr, p.Maestreunant, co.Mer., sometime lands of William 
ap Lewis dec’d. 
 

15 Feb 1658/9 

76.1 Fragment of deed tempore Anne 
1.  (John Tibbotts the elder) and the younger 
2.  Edward Owen 
Lease of possession of y Tyddyn Dûy, y Tyddyn….. (in possession of ?Richard 
Evan, Lewis Owen, Margarett Jones Owen, Morris ….) 
 

1702-1714 

76.2 Bond 
1.  John Tybbotts of Abergwainolwyn, co.Mer., gent.; Richard Tybotts the elder 

of p.Llanbrin’Mair, co.Mount., blacksmith; Richard Tybotts the younger 
p.Towin’, co.Mer., yeoman 

2.  William Thomas of p.Llanworin, co.Mount., yeoman 
to pay £16 at Michaelmas 1662 
 

1 Mar 1660/1 

77.-81. Marriage Articles 
1.  Evan John Griffith ap Rees, t.Gregennan [now Crogennant], co.Mer.;  Griffith 

Evan, son and heir apparent, gents. 
2.  Richard Tibotts of Maestrevnant, co.Mer., gent. 
before marriage of Griffith Evan with Cathrin Tibbotts, eldest dter. of 2., and of 
John Tibbotts gent., son and heir apparent of 2. With Elizabeth vz’ Evan, eldest 
dter. of Evan John Griffith ap Rees before 1st June 1649  :  that 1. will convey to 
John Evan of p.Dolgelley, Evan ap Humffrey of same, Dauid ap Humffrey of 
Abergwynolwyn, gents., and Dauid John of Maeslangedrys, co.Mer., yeoman, all 
ms. in co.Mer.  viz. Havody garreg alias y Vyches las, Aberhirddowel and Cwm 
penn llydan, ps. Dolgelley and Llanglynin and ts. Gregennan and Dolgleder. 
Declaration of uses. 
(Torn  :  7 fragments) 
 

26 May 1649 

82.1 Agreement  
1.  John Elise of p.Towyn 
2.  John Lloyd of Mesypandy, esq. 
to convey to 2. property in Assignment from 1. to Hugh John of same parish, m. 
etc. Moel free vawr, t.Maestrefnant etc. 
For £15. 15s. to 1. and John Willia(ms). 
 

20 Nov 1652 

82.2 Bond 
1.  John ap Hugh ap Rees of Dolgoch, co.Mer.;  Hugh Jones, son and heir 

apparent 
2.  Richard Tibbotts of p.Llanbrenmair, co.Mont., gent. 
in £120 to observe covenants in 66. above. 
 

18 April 1655 

83. Order in Quarter Sessions, co.Merioneth, to John Tibbot and John Jenkin gent., 
high constables of the hundred of Estimaner, (excepting hundred of Mowthwey) 
to raise £32 for payment to Gruffith Lloyd of Vron and Robert Vaughan of 
Llangower, gent., receivers of bridge-boot, before 10th June 1658, towards 
expenditure of £600 on repairs to Bala bridge over River Treweryn on road 
leading from Bala to Ruthyn, co.Denb., etc. 

20 April 1658 
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Witnesses  :  Robert Vaughan, Maurice Wynne, Richard Anwyll. 
 

84.1 Bond 
1.  John Tybots of maistreanant, co.mer.; Euan ap Humffrey of Ceuenirowen, 

same co., gents 
2.  Harry ap Robert Simon of Dolgleder, yeoman 
Bond. In £10 to pay £5 on 9th may 1661 
 

9 May 1660 

84.2 Miscellaneous jottings : 
“assent if 70,000 li. By the surety for bond to comence from the i. deye of (feb 
deleted) Ja: 1660 to Hugh before the 2d deye of feb, Togather the like seueral 
sume to paye before the 26th of marche next” 
llanvendige  :  Rees ap Owen….; Bodgadvan  :  Jon ap Pughe;  Tuder  :  
llwyngwrill  :  Dd’ John Dd’ ap Holl’;  Treymorva  :  Tho: ap Priyce;  Gregenan  
:  Hugh Griffi Tuder;  Rudcrew  :  Ellise ap Hunffrey;  Penniarth  :  Holl’ 
William;  vchegareg  :  3 li xs. Xjd.  Red.  John Husse. 
 

 

85. Will of Richard Tibbott of Llanbrenmair, co.Mount., yeoman. 
• Cow and calf each to eldest son John Tybbotts and to son Richard Tybbotts; 

to last with ‘hutch’ or ‘Ark’ which testator bought at Dol gadvan. 
• Cow and calf to dter. Katherine and forgives £5 due from husband Griffith 

Evan. 
• Cow to dter. Anne in her keeping with cupboard in testator’s chamber 
• £20 to son Thomas Tybbotts within 2 years, with reversion to testator’s son 

John.  16 sheep to Thomas 
• £40 to son Edward Tybbotts viz. £20 in hand of Ann after 2 years (remits her 

debts) and £20 from goods and chattels.  Also cupboard with implements of 
husbandry and tools in testator’s shop. 

• To grandchild Richard Humffrey 1 year-old heifer on 1st May after decease. 
• 20s. towards casting of bells of Llanbrynmair 
• All remaining household stuff to wife etc. 
Sole executor  :  son Edward Tibbotts. 
Overseers  :  Thomas Williams and John Brees the eldest of Freeth, 
p.Llanbrynmair. 
Witnesses  :  And: Sauage,  John Breese, John Tibbott, Richard Bebbe. 
True copy by Thomas Griffith, clerk. 
 

7 Aug 1661 

87. Bond 
1.  Richard Tybbotts of Llanbrynmair, co.Mount., smith;  John Tybbotts of 

Llanvihangell, co.Mer.;  Richard Evans of same, gents. 
2.  John Richard of Llanbrynmair, mercer 
in £100 to pay £50 and interest on 1st November 1653 
 

2 Nov 1652 

88. Release and Quitclaim 
1.  John William, late of Llanvihangell, co.Mer., gent. 
2.  John Lloyd of Maesypandy, co.Mer., esq. 
from all actions etc. of cap.m. and tmt. Moyl free fawr (of 2.), t. Maestreuenant, 
p.Llanvihangell [-y-Pennant], co.Mer. 
Consideration  :  £40 
 

20 Oct 1653 

89. Lease of Possession 
1.  John Lloyd of Maesypandy, co.Mer., esq. 
2.  John Tibbotts of Abergynolwyn, co.Mer., gent. 
 

14 Feb 1658/9 

91. Bond 
1.  John Tybbotts of p.Llanvihangell; Richard Tybbotts of Towyn, gents 
2.  Owen Evans of p.Llanvihangell, yeoman 
in £80 to pay £40 and interest on 1st November next. 
 

6 Feb 1668/9 

92. Bond 
1.  John and Richard Tybbotts of Maestrefnant, yeomen 
2.  Elizabeth Vaughan of Cathley, spinster 
in £40 to pay £20 and interest on 1st August 1675 
 

4 Sept 1674 
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93. Grant and Surrender 
1.  John Tybbotts of Maestrefnant, co.Merionyth, gent. 
2.  Richard Tybbotts, son and heir apparent 
of life interest in ms., tmts. etc. Y Tythin dv, Tythyn bach yn y Llwyn, Nant yr 
Esgair, Y forlfre fechan, Tythyn y Bryn moel, y voelvre fawr and Tythyn 
Merddyb Angharad, t.Maestrefnant, ps. Towyn and Llanvihangell y Penant, 
co.Mer. 
Consideration  :  marriages of 2. with Jane Dauid, dter. of John ap Hugh, and 
Hugh Dauid, son of said John, with Margaret, dter. of 1. 
 

2 Feb 1672/3 

94. Lease 
1.  John Evans of Llanbryn Maire, co. Mount., gent. 
2.  Dauid ap Prichard of p.Towyn; John Tybbotts of of p.Llanvihangell, co.Mer., 

gents. 
Of £5 annuity out of ms. etc. Pentre Cumddylan ycha, p.Tavolwerne, p. Llanbryn 
Maire (1 moiety of  £10 annuity charged to Anne wife of 1., mother os ‘said’ 
William Jones, in lieu of dower) for 3 years from 1st May 1683 (£3 to Dauid, 402. 
To John) 
Consideration  :  £15 (£9 by Dauid, £6 by John) 
  

13 Mar 1680/1 

96. Grant and Feoffment 
1.  Richard Tybbotts of Maestrefnant, gent 
2.  Richard Tybbotts and Lewis Dauid 
of ms., tmts. etc. Y Tythin dv, Tythyn bach yn y Llwyn, Nant yr Esgair, Y forlfre 
fechan, Tythyn y Bryn moel, y voelvre fawr and Tythyn Merddyb Angharad, 
t.Maestrefnant, ps. Towyn and Llanvihangell y Penant, co.Mer. 
Consideration  :  performance of covenants in 31st Jan 1671/2 between  
a.  Richard Tybbotts of Maestrefnant and John Tybbotts, his father 
b.  David John ap Hugh 
c.  Richard Tybbotts and Lewis Dauid (see 93. above) 
 

3 Feb 1671/2 

97. Agreement 
1.  William Vaughan of Cathley, co.Mer., esq. 
2.  John Tybbotts and Richard Tybbotts of Maestrefnant, yeoman 
to convey pasture and waste grounds part of St. Cadvans Lands called 
Moelfrefawr in length between lands of John Nanney, gent on E. and ruins of an 
earthen ditch on W., in breadth between lands of said John Tybbotts, in hamlet of 
Bûarth meini, t.Maestrefnant, co.Mer. 
Consideration  :  £20. 
 

4 Sept. 1674 

98-101. Marriage Articles 
1.  John Tybbott the eldest of Aber gynolwyn, p.Llanvihangel-y-Pennant, 

co.Mer., gent. 
2.  William Pugh(e) of Mathauarne, p.Llanworin, co.Mont., esq. 
before marriage of 1. with Mary Owen of Mathauarne  :  acording to Church of 
England before 1st May 1680.  £40 portion.  Agreement by 1. To add £20 and for 
parties to lay out the £60 in mortgage in fee in trust to use of marriage partners 
and heirs.  Other terms. 
Seal of Pughe. 
 

17 April 1680 

103. Bond 
1.  Richard Tybbotts of p.Towyn, co.Mer., gent. 
2.  John Tybbotts of p.Llanvihangell, gent. 
in £20 to deliver as many boards, tables and frames, bedsteads, coffers, 
‘whitches’, woollen looms (‘lomes’) and other small planks which John Tybbotts 
leaves in the mansion house of Abergynolwyn and in the dairy house belonging 
for Richard Tybbotts’ loan 
 

22 April 1684 

105-106. Mortgage Lease 
1.  Griffith Evan John of t.Dolgleder, p.Dollgelley, co.Mer., gent. 
2.  Richard Tybbotts of Abergynolwyn, p.Llanvihangel y Pennant, gent. 
for securing £6 for 21 years on m., tmt. and lands Aber hîr ddowell, t.Dolgleder 
(of 1. and William Griffith) 
Dorse  :  sealed towards payment of bond 7th Jan 1691/2 and 10s. 
 

1 Nov 1697 

35 



M_d_bom.doc 

107. Release and Quitclaim 
1.  John Tibbotts the elder of Abergynolwyn, gent. 
2.  John Tibbotts the younger, vicar of p. church of Darrowen, co.Mount., 

administrator of Richard Tibbotts of Abergynolwyn dec’d. 
Release and Quitclaim from all actions etc. v. Richard Tibbotts dec’d. and 2. 
 

13th Oct 1710 

108. John Tibbotts, vicar of Darrowen, eldest son and heir of Richard Tibbotts of 
Abergynolwyn gent., dec’d (eldest son and heir of John Tibbotts gent. od same 
dec’d) :  Renunciation of Letters of Administration of goods of John Tibbotts, 
grandfather, (died intestate) and consent to brother Edward Tibbotts, 2nd son of 
Richard Tibbotts dec’d, of same. 
Appointment of Mr. John Parry and ---, proctors of consistory court of Bangor, to 
appear on his behalf before William Morgan, BA, chancellor. 
Dorse  :  ‘To call to Jn. Ye Carrier to tell him yt. He may have ye Tram out at 2s. 
8d. per gallon or ye whole quantity in ye cask 20 gallons 4 to be had at yn y 
maengwyn if ready money be had fort’. 
 

5 July 1712 

109. Lease 
1.  Robert Evan of (?Nant) Llwyn Gwyn 
2.  John Edward of Hendre wallog 
Of m. and tmt. Nant-Llwyn-Gwene for 6 years or 3 years as 2. pleases.  Rent  :  
£7.  
Robert Evan to have shepherding of 25 sheep on commons and low ground of 
said tmt. by 2 and one chamber above stairs next to the hill in the dw. house.  
Both agree to make or repair a stone wall above Graig-wen as meared by them 
‘wch could not be better specified by them in this Agreemt.’ Etc. 
 

28 October 1720 

110. Mortgage 
1.  John Tibbotts, vicar of Darrowen, co.Mont. 
2.  Roger mostyn of Aberhiriaeth, co.Mont., esq. 
for £150 on ms., tmts. etc. Tyddyn Du, y Tyddyn bach yn y Llwyn, Nant yr 
Esgair, y foelfre fechan, Tythyn y Bryn Moel, Maies y Gro, Gwern Menne, y 
foelfre fawr and Tyddyn Myrddyn Angharad, ps. Llanfihangel y Pennant and 
Towyn, co.Mer. (Lewis Powell, Hugh David, Elizabeth Pugh widow, Catherine 
Rowland spinster, Jane David widow, and John Evan). 
Declaring uses of a Common Recovery (Great Sessions), 22 Sept 1710 
1.  Lewis Jones, gent. 
2.  Edward Owen, gent (tenant) 
3.  John Tibbotts clerk (1st vouchee) 
Of 4 ms., 3 cottages etc. in ps. Llanvihangel y Pennant and Towyn  :  to use of 
Mostyn etc. 
 

27 Nov 1731 

111. Bond 
1.  John Tibbotts, vicar of Darrowen, co.Mont 
2.  Lewis Edwards of Talgarth, co.Mer., gent. 
in £400 to perform covenants in indentures and release between 1. and Vaughan 
Jones, rector of Cemmes, co. Mount., and Edward Rowlands of Machynlleth, and 
2. (See113 below). 
 

14 Oct 1735 

112. Bond 
1.  John Tibbotts, vicar of Darrowen, co.Mont 
2.  Jane Edwards of Talgarth, co.Mer., spinster 
in £400 to pay £200 and interest on 10th Oct next in Lease, even date, between 
parties. 
 

10 Oct 1735 

113. Lease of Possession 
1.  John Tibbotts, vicar of Darrowen 
2.  Vaughan Jones, rector of Kemmes [Cemais], and Edward Rowlands of 

Machynlleth, co.Mount., gent. 
Of ms., etc. Y Tythyn Du, y Tythin Coch yn y Llwyn, Nant yr Escair, y foel fre 
vechan, Tythin y Bryn Moel, Mais y Gro, Gwern Menne, y foelfre fawr and 
Tythyn Mynddyd Ynhared, ps. Llanfihangel y Pennant and Towyn, co.Mer. 
(Howell Lewis and Lewis Powell) 
 

13 Oct 1735 

115. Lease of Possession 19 Nov 1735 
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1.  Roger Mostyn of Aberhiriaeth, co.Mount 
2.  Jane Edwards of Talgarth, co.Mer., spinster 
 

117. Release 
1.   Griffith Jones of Aberhirddowen, co.Mer., gent 
2.   William Tibbotts of same, gent., stepfather 
from all actions etc. 
 

6 April 1751 

118. Bottom fragment of a ?bond; signed by Griffith Jones and witnessed as 117. 
above 
 

 

119. Will of William Tibbots of the town of Dolgelley, gent. 
£3 annuity to wife Anne from testator’s dter. Mary Pughe, wife of Richard Pughe 
surgeon, on 16th December for life, and use of all household furniture. 
Sole executrix  :  Mary Pughe, with remainder. 
 

28 Sept 1761 

120. Will of Richard Pughe of Tycroes, p.Llanfehangel y penant, co.Mer., gent 
All goods etc. to granddter. Mary Pugh, dter of William Pugh his son. 
Sole executrix  :  Mary Pugh 
 

5 Sept 1803 

121. Will (copy) of Anne Tibbotts of Machynlleth, widow 
½  guinea each to dters. Pugh and Jane.   
Rest of goods etc., subject to debts and £6 annuity bequeathed by will of 
testatrix’s sister Jane Edwards to nephew Richard, to 4 youngest dters. Anne, 
Margaret, Susan and Betty Tibbotts (executrices) 
Probate (St Asaph) 12th Sept 1753 
Dorse  :  list of properties 
 

28 Nov 1745 

122. Will (copy) of Susan Tybbotts of Machynlleth, co.Mont., spinster 
To be buried in p. church of Penal, co.Mer. 
• £10 and best feather bed and sheets to sister Jane Tybbots. 
• £10 to sister Ann Tybbots. 
• £5 to sister Lowry Pugh. 
• £20 to sister Elizabeth and box and clothes at Penrallt. 
• £20 to nephew Richard Pugh. 
• 1 guinea each to Lewis Edwards, James Edwards and Anne Edwards 

(children of cousin Humphrey Edwards) and to Louisa Anwyl. 
• 40s. to Margaret, wife of Rev. Mr. Lewis Thomas. 
• Gold ring to cousin Anwyl. 
• Rest of personal estate to brother Richard Tybbots (sole executor). 
• Looking glass to cousin Edwards of Talgarth 
• 1 guinea to Anne, dter. of said Lewis Thomas 
Probate (St Asaph) 28th April 1757 
 

4 Nov 1755 

123. Letter 
1.  Charles Jones, Machynlleth 
2.  Revd. Richard Pughe, Llanegrin 
Has seen 2.’s aunt Mrs Jane Tybbots this morning and she is surprised at 2. not 
bringing or sending the deeds she executed when 2. was last in Machynlleth after 
her expence in sending david Griffith and Mr. David Williams for that purpose.  
Requests 2. to bring or send deeds to Machynlleth following morning to be 
inspected and explained to Major Edward and her etc.  1. is instructed on failure 
to compel their production etc.  
 

19 April 1799 

124. Will (extracted) of John Edwards MA, rector of Llanwrin, co.Mont. 
• £5 to poor of p.Llanwryn 
• 1 guinea each to brother Lewis Edwards, sisters Susan Rowlands and Ann 

Tibbotts 
• 2 guineas to nephew Lewis Edwards of Talgarth. 
• 1 guinea to nephew Humphrey Edwards 
• 2 guineas to nephew Robert Edwards 
• 10 guineas to nephew and godson John Edwards 
• 2 guineas to ----- (Ed)wards 

20 Aug 1731 
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• To niece Susan Ed(wards)……… 
• 2 guineas each to niece Ann Edwards and nephew Edward Edwards of 

Machynlleth 
• £20 to (niec)e Lowry Tibbotts 
• £10 to niece Jane Tibbotts 
• £5 to nephew ------- 
• £5 each to Ann Tibbotts, Margrett Tibbotts and Susan Tibbotts 
• To ------- desires friend John Pughe of Mathavarn esq. and brother Lewis 

Edwards to see payment of legacies etc. 
• Rest of personal estate subject to debts etc. to sister Jane Edwards (sole 

executor) for her great and faithful services. 
Probate (PCC) 24th Dec 1740 
 

125. Ordination (Bangor) of John Edwards BA (Jesus College, Oxford) as priest. 
Dorse  :  exhibited at visitations 1st Sept 1719 at Dolgelley and 6th June 1722 at 
Festiniog. 
 
 

5 Sept 1714 

128. Faculty admitting John Edwards (as above) curate of p. church of Llan-Egryn and 
care of school established by Hugh Owen esq. at same. 
Dorse  :  exhibited at visitation 6th June 1722 at Festiniog. 
 

4 Sept 1714 

129. Embossed paper seal of archbishop of Canterbury 
 

 

130. Admission of John Tibbotts BA, clerk, to perpetual vicarage and p. church of 
Darowen, co.Mount., on resignation of Master Richard Savage. 
Dorse  : exhibited at bishop’s visitations  :  Llanvylling 28thAug 1705; 11th Aug 
1710; 24th July 1716; 21st July 1727 and Newtown 12th June 1734, and 1713 and 
1719. 
 

11 July 1704 

131. Assignment 
1.  John Edwards of town of Machynlleth, co.Mount., esq. 
2.  Richard Pughe, late of same, now of village of Llanfihangelypennant, 

co.Mer., apothecary 
3.  Richard Pughe of Pant, p.Llanegrin, co.Mer., clerk 
4.  Hugh Pughe of Dolronen, p.Talyllyn, co.Mer., yeoman 
Of bond 8th March 1796 
1.  Richard Tybbotts late of Machynlleth, gent. 
2.  John Edwards (party)  
in £400 for payment of £200 and interest. 
Consideration  :  £200 to 1. from 4. 
Tybbotts died March 1798 leaving will devising chief part of real estate to sister 
Jane Tybbotts spinster (dec’d) and on her decease to nephew Richard Pughe 
apothecary (party) and on his death to Richard Pugh, clerk (party). 
 

12 May 1802 

133-136. Will (copy) of Robert Morgan Cerrigydruidion, co.Denb., clerk 
• Wife Elizabeth will be entitled on decease to £1,000 under their Marriage 

Settlement out of ms. etc. Cwm llecoediog and Cefn-cwm-llecoediog , 
p.Mallwyd, co.Mont., vested in David Hughes of Jesus College, Oxford, DD. 
And Owen Anthony Poole of town of Carnarvon esq. in trust to sell and 
discharge a bond debt of £1,450 and interest to Revd. John Ellis of Kyffty, 
co.Denb., and secondly to pay to wife £1,000.  If sale does not take place 
before testator’s death then wife shall have overplus after payment of £1,450  
etc. and £1,000.  On refusal or neglect of trustees then wife shall have of 
£1,450 and £1,000  

• Also devises to her Plas-canol and Gardd-aniel, p.Llanaber, co.Mer., and 
other freehold for life. 

• On forfeiture to William Edwards of Hendre House, p.Llanrwst, esq. and 
Revd. John Titley of Llanrwst in trust etc. 

• On death of wife said estate to use of brother Pierce Morgan and son Robert 
Morgan, testator’s sister Elizabeth Pughe (wife of Revd. Richard Pughe of 
Pant, p.Llanegryn), then her eldest son Richard Pughe 

Sole executrix  :  wife Elizabeth 
 

16 Nov 1808 
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138. Surrender 
1.  John Tibbotts the elder of Abergynolwyn, co.Mer., gent. 
2.  John Tibbotts the younger, vicar of p.Darrowen, co.Mount., BA 
Of ms., tmts. etc. Y Tythyn Duy, y Tythyn bach yn y Llwyn, Nant yr esgair, y 
foelfre fechan, Tythyn y bryn moel, Maes y gro, Gwern menne, y foelfre fawr 
and Tythyn myrddyn Angharad, ps. Llanvihangell-y-Pennant and Towyn, 
co.Mer. (William James, Jane David, Evan Lewis Owen, Margaret Jones, Owen 
Morris, John Tibbotts glover, and Mary Thomas) 
Condition that 2 pays £500 on 29th September next. 
 

2 Aug 1710 

140. Assignment of Mortgage 
1.  Roger Mostyn of Aberhiriaeth, co.Mount., esq. 
2.  Jane Edwards of Talgarth, co.Mer., spinster 
For £153 1s. on Y Tythyn Duy, y Tythyn bach yn y Llwyn, Nant yr esgair, y 
foelfre fechan, Tythyn y bryn moel, Maes y gro, Gwern menne, y foelfre fawr 
and Tythyn myrddyn Angharad, ps. Llanvihangell-y-Pennant and Towyn, (Lewis 
Powell and Howell Lewis) 
See 110 and 115 above. 
 

20 Nov 1735 

144. Will (extracted) of Jane Edwards of town of Machynlleth,co.Mont., spinster 
• £30 to brother Lewis Edwards 
• £20 to niece Susan Edwards. 
• £10 to nephew Humphrey Edwards. 
• £10 to niece Owen for a mourning ring. 
• £20 each to nephews Robert and Edward Edwards 
• £6 to nephew Richard Edwards by ½ yearly payments. 
• £20 to niece Lowry Pugh. 
• £60 each to nieces Jane Tibbots and Anne Tibbots 
• £40 to nephew Richard Tibbots out of a mortgage affecting his estate. 
• £40 each to nieces Margarett, Susan and Elizabeth Tibbots at ages 21. 
• £20 to nephew Richard Pugh. 
• £5 to poor of Parcell Iss yr afon, p.Towyn, co.Mer. 
Sole executrix  :  sister Anne Tibbotts - with rest of goods etc. after debts. 
Overseers  :  brother Lewis Edwards and cousin Vaughan Jones, rector of 
Cemmes, with 30s. apiece for rings. 
Probate (PCC) 17th Oct 1740 
 

16 July 1739 

146. Will (copy) of Richard Pughe of Gwyrddfrynie, p.Llanegryn, co.Mer., clerk 
Recital of will of Richard Tibbots of town of Machynlleth 2nd Jan 1790 devising  
Tyddin Duy, y Tythin bach yn y Llwyn, Nant yr esgair, y Foelfre fechan, 
Tythinbrynmoel, Maesygro, Gwernmenne, y Foelfre fawr and Tythyn Myrddyn 
Angharad now called Hendre, Foelfre, Maesygroe, Tythin y ffordd, fotty 
Tydylian in ps. Llanfihangel y pennant and Towyn, co.Mer., to Turner Edwards 
of Oldport, co.Salop, clerk (dec’d) and heirs to uses of nephew Richard Pughe, 
apothecary (dec’d) to permit £10 annuity to testator’s sisters Jane and Elizabeth 
Tibbots (both dec’d) and £10 annuity to Tibbot’s wife Mary for life; to use of 
Richard Pughe of Llanegrin (testator Pughe) elder son of the apothecary etc. 
• Pughe now appoints £15 annuity to wife Elizabeth for life out of said property 

in lieu of dower. 
• Now charges same property with £300 for their younger children equally 
• Devises ½ of m. etc. Cantrebedd, p.Llanfihangel y pennant to Anthony 

Morgans of Hendre, p.Llangelynin, gent to use of testator’s wife; then to 
testator’s brother William Pughe for 500 years in trust to mortgage and raise 
£400 for testator’s younger children at ages 21 etc. 

• Use of household goods etc. to wife for life; then to dter. Jane Pughe with 
£200 charged on residue of personal estate etc. 

• Rest of goods and personal estate to wife; then to younger children equally. 
Sole executrix  :  wife Elizabeth 
 

 

147. Photocopy of pedigree (‘..found in Mr. Pennant’s Library, Downing Hall, 
Flintshire, by Hugh Davies, late Yscuborwen’) of Edward Morgan of Plascanol. 
 

 

148. Newspaper cuttings concerning Mellor church bazaar and Revd. G.R.G. Pughe  c.1899-1903 
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150. Cutting from ‘Blackburn Weekly Telegraph’ concerning addresss to Revd. 

G.R.G. Pughe, vicar of Mellor, Lancs (1865-1912) 
 
 

20 April (1912) 

M/D/BOM/5/2 Copies made by G.R.G. Pughe  : 
 

 

1. Will (St. Asaph) of Richard ap John ap Hughe of p.Darowen 
• To eldest son Edward ap Richard all lands etc. in ‘[lord]shippe of Kyveiliog’ 

and co.Montgomery on condition of paying debts 
• Devises mansion house of Combbychan (where Lewis ap Hughe ap Owen 

dwells) with the mill to wife Jane verch Wattkin for 6 years towards 
education of their 5 dters. and child unborn and all goods ([except] ☺rd to 
Jane) to same. 

• All estates in the p.Darowen and Kemmes [Cemais] to same reserving those 
in p.Darowen and ‘the Towne’ mentioned [the passage seems garbled].  

• To dters. Ellaine, mary and Gaynor the money received at hands of John ap 
Dl’ [?David] ap Gwilym (‘glm’ pudid’) if wife marries within 7 years. 

Executor  :  son Edward 
Overseers  :  Edward Harble and Richard Price, esqs.,; Gruff’ Morgans, clerk, 
others. 
With copy 
 

18 Jan 1587/88 

2. Copied from a document lent to Pughe by David Howell esq., solicitor, Craig-y-
don, Aberdovey. 
Abstract of title of Mr John Lewis to farms etc. Cwmllowy Ucha and Gadergoch, 
p.Darowen, agreed to be sold to Mr Hugh Davies. 
• Marriage Settlement 19-20th June 1724 

1.  Richard Pugh of Cwmllowy, gent.;  Mary, his wife;  Edward Pugh, gent., 
son and heir 

2.  Morris Griffith of Gyllie, p.Cemmes, gent. 
3.  Evan Pugh of Glanhanog, yeoman;  John Morris of Cwmgwreinin, 

p.Cemmes, gent. 
Before marriage of Edward Pugh with Jane Richard, spinster, 1st cousin to 2.  
£200 portion.  Conveying ms. etc. Tythyn Blaen Cwmllowy (margin 
‘probably Cwmllowy Ucha’), Esgair ganol alias Eskair onnen, and Tythin 
Croesnant otherwise Tythin y fedw (Thomas John William, tenant), t.Noddfa, 
p.Darowen.  Declaration of uses (refer to Catharine, mother of Richard Pugh, 
party, and Cwmllowy Issa, Tythin y bwlch, Tythin yn y pant and Tythin 
canol Cwmllowy) 

 

 

3. Will (St. Asaph) of Richard Pughe of Cwmllowi, p.Darowen, gent. 
• 5s. each to eldest son Edward Pughe and dter. Cathering Pughe, wife of 

Hughe Jones. 
• All moneys to wife Mary and younger son Richard Pughe equally with rest of 

personal estate (executors). 
Probate  :  28th Oct 1728 
 

6 Sept 1728 

4. Probate copy of above will from a document lent to Pugh by David Howell esq. 
 

Jan 1731 

5. Will (St. Asaph) of Richard Pugh of p.Mallwyd, co.Mer., gent. 
• £1 each to Catherine Pierce, dter. of stepfather David Pierce the younger of 

p.Mallwyd, and to Jane Whittington, dter. of Rowland Whittington, 
p.Cemmes, co.Mont., blacksmith, both to be laid out in sheep by executors. 

• £20 to said David Pierce. 
• £1 to cousin Richard Pugh, only son of testator’s late uncle Richard Pugh, 

clerk, dec’d. 
• Devises Cwmllowey ucha and Tuynyrwtra in ps. Darowen and Cemmes 

subject to £253 and interest (to Simon Humphreys clerk and Robert griffith 
esq.) to trustees David Pierce the younger and friend Griffith Lewis of town 
of Llanvilling (marginal note by G.R.G. Pughe  :  Lewis was bailiff in 
Llanfyllin 1752 and 1760) to pay debts etc., to pay 10s. annuity to Catherine 
Edward spinster, base dter. of testator’s late father Edward Pugh gent., as long 
as she is not bedridden when she may be paid 20s. annuity, and to permit 

22 Nov 1748 
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testator’s only brother Edward Pugh to take rents etc., then to his heirs etc;  in 
default Cwmllowey issa, Cwmllowey Bach and Cwmllowey Ucha (charged 
with £100 and interest due to Robert Griffith esq.) to said trustees to use of  
cousin Richard Pugh and heirs etc.;  in default to cousin Robert Jones, eldest 
son of Hugh Jones of Aberllewellin, p.Cemmes, gent. etc. 

• Devises Tynyrwtra, on death of Edward Pugh heirless, (charged with £153 
and interest due to Simon Humphreys clerk) to Pierce and Griffith Lewis for 
John Morris of Gellie, p.Cemmes, gent.  If brother Edward Pugh marries then 
he may legally appoint any part of said property as jointure not exceeding £8 
for every £100 portion. 

• Power to trustees to cut timber etc. to value £100 for use of Edward Pugh in 
setting him up as a grocer or as trustees approve 

• Various items of clothing to Edward Pugh and David Pierce  :  executors. 
• Rest of goods equally divided 
Probate  :  11 May 1749 
 

6. The abstract lent by David Howell to Pughe recites 5. above and adds recital of 
1st Aug 1748 - 
1.  Richard Pugh, gent 
2.  Robert Griffith esq. 
Mortgage lease of said property for £100 and interest for 500 years;  assigned 
20th July 1791 to Humphrey Jones (dec’d) in trust for Catherine Jones. 
 

 

M/D/BOM/5/3-32 Extracted copies of wills and correspondence  :  
 

 

M/D/BOM/5/3 Will of Richard ap John ap Hughe of p.Darowen (see M/D/BOM/5/2.1) 
 

18 Jan 1587 

M/D/BOM/5/4 (see M/D/BOM/5/2.3 above) 
 

 

M/D/BOM/5/5 (see M/D/BOM/5/2.5 above) 
 

 

M/D/BOM/5/6-32 Correspondence and other papers formerly enclosed in 
M/D/BOM/5/5 

 

   
M/D/BOM/5/6 Letter 

1.  Benjamin Swayne, Corke 
2.  Captn. George Gould, Prescott-Street, Goodman Fields, London 
Fortnight since Swayne had a letter from Gould which makes him uneasy.  
Convinced that Nate’s mother meant nothing more than to deceive ‘us’ - not 
heard from her since.  Fancies her dter. Fennell is as bad and only wanted to 
precure as much intelligence as he could without giving any - ‘must be on our 
guard’ etc.  (Encloses 2. cuttings of newspaper advertisement placed by 1. 
cautioning public against acquisition of Knockraha estate owing to suit in 
Chancery by Gould and counter-reply by Ignatius Gould).  Has not replied;  
needs none.  Ignatius’s attorney Barry Power has visited 1. for Bill etc.  
Recommends 2. not to postpone going to his ship etc.  Would be glad if 2. was in 
Dublin in May.  Nate has disobliged Kearney by voting on the late election 
contrary to his request.  Affair of marriage sticks confoundedly in Nate’s gizzard 
etc.  2.’s cousin Joe calls him ‘Rogue’ etc.  Has seen Connellan and his 
suspicions were illgrounded;  he was detained from 1. by his children being in the 
smallpox but plans to find out how  the Bill affects Nate.  Mrs. Swayne and 1.’s 
son Arthur are well.  All thoughts of war seem to subside  :  ‘poor Paol & 
Corsica’ must fall a sacrifice to French ambition. 
 

2 Sept 1768 

M/D/BOM/5/7 Copy of letter 
1.  John Fennell 
2.  Benjamin Swayne 
(describing cross-examination on 19th at Mr Ruggs.  Gives details of his personal 
life;  remarks on marriage to Grace Sarnsfield’s dter.;  illegitimacy of her son 
Ignatius Gould, Dinnahy). 
 

21 Jan 1769/70 

M/D/BOM/5/8 Complaint of George Gould esq. (incomplete) 
 

 

M/D/BOM/5/9 The Several Answer of Ignatius Gould esq., one of the defendants to the amended  
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Bill of Complaint of George Gould esq. 
 

M/D/BOM/5/10 Letter 
1.  B(enjamin) Swayne, Dublin 
2.  ‘Dearest Friend’ Captn. George Gould, Prescott-Street, Goodman Fields, 

London 
Sends last answer of Ignatius which strikes 1. as strong respecting the marriage 
on the face of the answers he has put in;  his confusion and apprehension appear 
conspicuous to 1.  He avoids naming any priest and swears he was informed and 
believes his father and mother were married by one John Keating.  He alleges he 
was informed that one Broder, a priest, was like to be the person who gave 
Ignatius a certificate and that his mother had told him the priest was Griffin but 
last would not give him a certificate etc.  Thinks it a horrid bungled piece of 
work.  2nd answer names Keating but ‘our’ amended Bill threw Ignatius into 
consternation etc.  (Sets out contradictions in his case). 
Believes he cannot prove a marriage as he shows they were married by 3 
different priests etc.  Has laid the papers before Hughes this day.  ‘We’ must get 
the Settlement 1701 brought into court (Discusses strategy v. Ignatius)  Dany 
Power has told 1 he was sure to prevail by reason of the repute of the country and 
2.’s letters ‘when in the George Arm’d Ship’.  Has received a letter from Mr. 
Cossins  :  at a loss to know what he means by some expressions etc.  He is 
premature.  1. has just paid upwards of £100 to ‘our friend’ Jos: Huband and 1.’s 
wood is not yet sold.   Asks compliments to Cossins etc.  1. has two good draft 
horses and Mrs Swayne exercises them and often wishes for her ‘Chichesby to 
hand Madam O’Neil’ and to take an airing with her.  Arthur gives his love to 
Amy  :  1.’s last son and dter. will make a dead match.  Surely 2. can now dispose 
of his ship to advantage.  The people on 2.’s side the water are growing mad in 
their politics; ‘we’ here as poor as church mice, money all sent over to ‘you’.  20 
capital merchants have failed in this town.  Sir Wm. Colebrooke & Co., bankers 
have stopped payment etc.  Banks so violently run at,  an anarchy in trade and 
credit etc.  Love from Mrs. Swayne, Arthur etc. to Mrs. Gould, 2. and family.  
 

3 Dec 1770 

M/D/BOM/5/11 Letter 
1.  E(llen) G(ould), Cork 
2.  Mrs Muir, ?5 Sicamore St., Mile End, London 
Concerned to har of 2.’s poor health.  Trusts George is recovered.  Sorry to hear 
of Jenny ill at Margate.  Pleased to hear 2.’s mother is well. 
In respect of Knockraha Dr. Lessley is dead 4 months and his son in possession 
of the fortune without the least control from Nate Gould.  He gave up the old 
marriage settlements of 2.’s grandfather  :  lawyers’ opinion that Gould had no 
power to sell the estate without his brother, next heir, joining him in levying 
fines.  Since sale Gould has had 4 sons and could not sell their birthright.  Nate 
Gould came into the fortune as elder brother’s son and heir-at-law to 2.’s uncle 
Garrett Gould.  This matter must rest until after the death of Nate Gould.  Report 
says his son will come in for it.  2.’s ‘Dear Father’ had tried to bastardize Nate 
but, 1. is sorry, he failed - thus 1 has heard from Mr Sarsfield, lawyer etc.  If 1. 
hears anything will inform 2. and her brother.  Last enclosed the letters from 2. 
and Nate by Capt. Miller from Cove.  Mary’s anxiety was great and she prevailed 
on a party to go to Cove with her but was mortified to find the fleet had sailed 
that morning etc.  Never get a line from Mr Fitzgerald and supposes the letter of 
Piety’s was never given to Captn. Jones as 1. is convinced he would have taken 
care of any letters.  Mary is vexed and ‘we’ are all anxiety to know the result of 
that affair.  Received letter from Cahill yesterday, dated last May, which 
mentions he has a letter for 1. etc.  He speaks in highest terms of Ignatius, that he 
is quite a reformed young man etc.  1. has been sea bathing since May to see if 
the change of air would serve her cough - now well but it returns the moment she 
comes to Cork.  Mary is in good health.  
(Explains financial difficulties since 1.’s leaving London). 
Has lost £100 to save the houses from Nate Gould etc.  Now lodges in a very 
pleasant house.  Captn, ?Teap is dead.  Asks 2. to direct letters in future to care of 
Miss Hannah Gould, Parliament St., Cork.  Mary wrote to Proby last July by 
Captn. Butler bound to Liverpool and was soon going to London.  1. also wrote 
to Mr and Mrs Elleaster by him and would be glad to know if they were delivered 
if 2 sees Mr Cahill.  Asks 2. to let him know 1. never got his letter.  Got his letter 
dated 27th May yesterday and will answer it when she sees his brother when she 

9 Oct 1793 
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goes to his house at Black Rock this week.  Requests to hear from 2. of affairs at 
Mile End.  Mary unites in love to Mrs. Gould, nate and the Goulds.  
Remembrance to Emily ?Codd and Mary Miller. 
 

M/D/BOM/5/12 Letter 
1.  Ignatius Gould, kinsman, Knockraha near Cork 
2.  George Gould esq., Welch-pool, North Wales 
Introduces self as a near relation.  Sorry for the unhappy lawsuit that 2.’s father 
was persuaded to continue against 2. for estate of Knockraha. 
Assures 2. that he lost above £1,500 by it and 1. is told that 2 also suffered very 
much.  2.’s father informed him that he was next brother to 1.’s uncle Garnett 
Gould but he was the youngest of the 4 brothers.  Had 1.’s father died unmarried 
and without issue 2.’s father nor his children could never have come in for the 
fortune as ‘our’ 1st cousin Ignatius Gould of Spain would be next heir by 
birthright etc. 
1. has dter. and 4 sons  :  the dter. married a son of late John Glawey of Lora 
gent., universally esteemed, living in Cork;  1 son is going to Lisbon on a good 
prospect, eldest son is 17  :  ‘a very gentle well disposed lad’ etc.  Suggests 2. 
could get him ‘into a good Counter in London’ or some eligible situation on trial 
with 2. where last transacts so much business for government etc.  Mrs. Joseph 
Gould and her dter. tell 1. that 1.’s son Barret Gould has a strong resemblance to 
2.’s sister Jane. 
 

9 Nov 1797 

M/D/BOM/5/13 Recollections of the Gordon Riots 1780 by ‘my mother & by my Uncle George 
Gould’ recorded by Elizabeth Withy. 
(Refers to his mother’s sister Mrs. Muir, brother Ignatius, cousin Mrs Swithin, 
Captain Muir’s residence in Hermitage St., George Gould’s house in Mile End.) 
(Capt. George Gould of Mile End died 29th Aug 1788) 
 

 

M/D/BOM/5/14 Letter 
1.  J. Fitzgerald, Leman St. (?Dublin) 
2.  G(eorge) Gould, Golfa, Welchpool, Monts. 
(Describing fumeral of ‘poor Dear George’ Refers to Mr Swithin, Captn. 
McAllister, George Young junior and George’s mother, Jane, Peggy, John in 
Barbadoes, the Irish estates at Knockraha, Captn.Gould, Dr. Sarsfield, barret 
Gould, and Grace sarsfield, Mr Swayne in Dublin, Mr Fry, Jane)  :  willing to 
accept 2.’s invitation to the Golfs in summer and to help with the hay.  Love of 
Betsey and 2 boys to 2. and Harry. 
 

3 April 1802 

M/D/BOM/5/15 Letter 
1.  J. Fitzgerald, Leman St. 
2.  George Gould esq.,Welchpool 
(relating to Irish estates and destruction of papers by Mr Swayne concerning suit.  
Requests 2. to consider the matter and expence). 
 

22 Jan 1803 

M/D/BOM/5/16 Letter 
1.  E(lizabeth) Muir, sister 
2.  Mr. Gould,Welch Pool, Mont 
On the death of Garret Gould of Knockraha his brother Barrett’s son Ignatius 
came in as heir-at-law by renouncing the Church of Rome etc.  1.’s father’s 
attorney attempted to bastardize him as there was doubt whether his father was 
married to his mother at the time of birth, Mrs. Gould heard.  Cannot be proved 
that he recanted when he fell sick.  I. Gould mortgaged the estate to Dr. ?Lasslie 
and afterwards sold it to him for £18,000 etc. 
 

n.d. 

M/D/BOM/5/17 Copy of observations relative to the Mentmore Estate by G. Gould intended for 
Mr Griffith’s guidance as to making out a title. 
 

11 Oct 1824 

M/D/BOM/5/18 Letter 
1.  ?   (in Africa, possibly the Gold Coast) 
2.  Thomas Withy, Upton Iron Works, near Shrewsbury 
Withy’s welcome letter of 16th October arrived safely in the iron chest with the 
stove  :  both exactly of kind 1 wanted.  Been able to procure a sufficient supply 
of cast iron from the vessels trading there to last whole of rainy and foggy 
season;  stove in almost constant use to correct the dampness of the atmosphere 

26 June 1828 
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etc.  Best thanks for chest and stove.  1.’s father wrote that he would settle with 2.  
At last the British Government after having brought this coast to absolute ruin 
from a state of prosperity when they took the forts out of the hands of the late 
Africa Co. have generously resolved in withdrawing their hold and had not the 
merchants accepted the offer made by the government of taking the forts under 
their own management they would have been abandoned (details of allowance for 
maintenance of garrisons and petitions to retain the forts and their management 
council).  1. acts as collector of customs and is in charge of medecines until 
medical man can be procured;  have a good attentive native doctor who 
understands the treatments of the general range of diseases on the ‘Coast’ yet 
cannot write etc. 
Fernandê Po has been settled by persons sent out from England, black soldiers 
and  ?  from Sierra Leone and Cape Coast.  Every prospect of success but the 
government are not quite the people to get through the enterprise with advantage 
etc.  They assured the House of Commons £3,000 only would be wanted and now 
Captn. Owen the Superintendant asks for £30,000 per annum.  Trade ‘here’ so 
completely stopped that 1. does receive 1/20th of what did some time since.  Lives 
in hope of trade to Ashantee being shortly opened etc.  Wish to show 
Government how much may be done with a little money judiciously expended 
and also give the natives a greater idea of ‘our’ power and influence.  Have 
therefore increased garrison from 55 to 80 men and in ‘Town’ have 2 companies 
of militia and for show inlieu of a drum and fife ‘we’ have a very good band.  
Enough ammunition for a 7-years siege  :  more than a million rounds of ball 
cartridge and immense stock of other materials.  In depth of rainy season etc. 
(remarks on garden and personal health).  Had hope Miss Mary would have 
favoured 1. with beautiful drawings of flowers etc.  Hopes Miss Elizabeth is quite 
recovered and that Mrs. Withy, Miss Mary, Miss Ann all other branches of 2.’s 
family are quite well.  Remembrance to them and Mr. and Mrs. And Miss Gould. 
 

M/D/BOM/5/19 Copy of letter 
1.  Henry L. Dixon, Silvati, Lacovia, P(ost) O(ffice), St Elizabeth [Jamaica] 
2.  (? Thomas Withy) 
Apologies for late answer  :  month’s absence and heavy duties.  Doubtless a 
letter has reached 2. from Mr Corke re. late Mr H(enry) Withy’s will;  Church 
Missionary Society were made his executors.  Sent in October last with Report to 
the Committee ‘here’ a statement of things left in 1.’s possession by death etc.  
Committee appointed by Ashby, former resident catechivist at Salt Savannah 
Vere where 2.’s son expected to labour, and Corke, nearer to Kingston and a 
former intimate friend of dec’d, as executors.  2.’s letter was sent to Ashby by 
next post etc.  1 grieved to learn that so many things had been sold etc.  In this 
Ashby acted on committee advice but all has not been disposed of etc.  (Quotes 
from Ashby’s letter 6th April 1839 containing details of executorship, personal 
effects, burial and mission in Jamaica). 
 

2 May 1839 

M/D/BOM/5/20 Copy of letters from Thomas Withy, Golfa, Welshpool, to John Eddowes, 
Shrewsbury, and James Warner (Mentmore) re. sale of 15a. meadow in the 
village of  Mentmore, co.Bucks. 
 

17 July 1838 

M/D/BOM/5/21 Letter 
1.  James Warner, Mentmore 
2.  Thomas Withy, Golfa, Welshpool 
Finds Revd. Richard Pughe has directed 2 to offer land for sale at Mentmore held 
in 1.’s family upwards of 40 years.  Requests first refusal, etc. 
 

19 July 1838 

M/D/BOM/5/22 Fragment of letter endorsed with note  :  ‘Mrs. Mason, 45 Crown Street, 
Melbourn or Sydney’ and remarks that in February 1838 an Irish servant who 
lived with Thomas who came from Cork said she knew Knockraha very well, that 
it was then the property of a Gould ‘an old man….the richest Gentleman in Cork’ 
who had ‘a fine illegant’ dter. and that the next richest family was the Sarsfields.  
Thought christian name was garrett. 
 

 

M/D/BOM/5/23 Letter 
1.  Maria Decima Howell, Adelaide, South Australia 
2.  ‘dear parents’ 
Posted last letter on 5th Dec.  Received last from ‘dear’ Charlotte and Caroline 

28 Feb 1851 
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dated Sept. and Oct.  Intimated in last of becoming Mrs. Howell after Christmas 
holidays  :  interesting ceremony took place on Christmas day to Henry (details of 
ceremony etc.  Refers to husband and their cottage ‘in the roughest backwood 
style’, weather and fruits).  Revd. Woodcock at ceremony recalled a Mr Henry 
Withy who died in Jamaica.  1. Informed him he was a brother.  Woodcock sailed 
with him as ordaining clergyman and was a friend.  (remarks on receipt of 
newspapers.  Regards to brothers and sisters and all at Golfa, Llanfihangel, Tan y 
llwyn and London 
 

M/D/BOM/5/24 Translation of a letter from M. Durand in the French Company’s service at 
Chandernagore [India] to m. Picot Delamotte at Mahé concerning the cruelty and 
barbarous rule of Saradjot Dollah, nabob of Bengal, his seige of the fort held by 
the English at Cassimbazar, seizure of Mr. watts ‘the Chief’, imprisonment of 
Watts and garrison at Moxudabath, advance and assault on Calcutta held by 
Drake made by nabob’s ‘Moors’ flight of drake and capture of fort, destruction at 
Cassimbazar, Dacka [Dacca] etc.  Nabob at Hughly ‘a Moorish town’ and 
distrain on Dutch and French at Chandernagore. 
 

2 July 1756 

M/D/BOM/5/25 Certificate of baptism 2nd May 1800 of Elizabeth, dter of Thomas Withy and wife 
jane, born 29th March 1800. 
 

1841 

M/D/BOM/5/26 Letter 
1.  J. Fitzgerald 
2.  (George Gould)  
In addition to Mr Swayne’s letters which 2. furnished 1., 2.’s mother has found 
many more and part of defendant’s to amended Bill etc.  Has read and considered 
Swayne’s letters which seem to contain a sort of history of the progress of the 
suit (relates history).  Only point of law appears to be that deft. Held the estate as 
heir-at-law to Garret Gould and Barrett Gould by virtue of Settlement, 2nd July 
1701 etc.  In order to destroy that right 2.’s father as complainent insisted that 
deft.’s mother and father were not married at time of his birth (gives opinion of 
Fennel’s evidence, related matters and legal position).  Told 2.’s mother previous 
night of intention of corresponding with 1.’s uncle who lives near Cork etc. and 
1. believes knows the family well - should be anxious about marriage of Grace 
Sarsfield and Barret Gould.  Will refrain till has advice and permission of 2. etc. 
 

31 Aug 1801 

M/D/BOM/5/27  Copy of certificate by John Dinahy that any marriage ceremony between Barret 
Gould dec’d and Grace Sarsfield, reputed father and mother of Ignatius Gould 
now of Knockraha before ‘a Popish Priest’, was without Dinahy’s presence. 
  

1 April 1769 

M/D/BOM/5/28 Certificate of baptism August 1758 of Richard Gould, son of George and 
Elizabeth, Prescot St., at St. Mary’s, Whitechapel. 
 

1823 

M/D/BOM/5/29 Will (extracted) of Elizabeth Gardner of Mile End Old Town, co.M’sex, widow. 
• £1,000  3% consolidated bank annuities to son-in-law george Gould of 

Redman’s Rowe,  Mile End ‘Old’ [Town], gent. and William Complin of 
Prescot St., Goodman’s Fields, co.M’sex, apothecary, in trust to pay interest 
to testatrix’s sister Rachael Rayne for life on condition she conveys to 
testatrix’s dter. Elizabeth Gould all title etc. to estate in co.Bucks etc. 

• £300 to Gould and Complin in trust to be invested in stock or other 
government security as executrix Elizabeth Gould thinks meet for benefit of 
testatrix’s grandchildren Thomas, Penelope Rebecca and James Swithin as 
tenants in common etc.  On deaths before ages 21 then to testatrix’s dter. 
Elizabeth Gould, wife of said George Gould. 

• £100 to granddter. Elizabeth Muir, wife of Captn. John Muir etc. 
• Rest of money, plate etc. to said Elizabeth Gould and heirs. 
Executors  : George Gould, William Complin and Elizabeth Gould 
Probate (London) 14th November 1776 
 

10 Oct 1776 

M/D/BOM/5/30 List of children of Joseph Raine son of Thomas raine 1695-1734. 
 

 

M/D/BOM/5/31 Portion of petition relating to Ignatius Gould and marriage of his parents. 
Addressed to (Geor)ge Gould, …….Goodmansfields, London. 
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M/D/BOM/5/32 Transcript by G.R.G. Pughe, Mellor Vicarage, Blackburn, of letter 2nd Sept 1834 
from Richard Pughe (rector) of Llanfihangel (-yng-Ngwynfa) to brother John 
Pughe, rector of Llanfrothen, co.mer, concerning birth of dter. Anne (with 
description etc.;  details of farming, Golfa and son george Gould Pughe) 
(Fragments)  
 

25 May 1917 

M/D/BOM/5/33 Copy of citation to lead to faculty from Bishop of Manchester to Revd. Ashley 
Tregoning Corfield, vicar of Tockholes, co.Lancs., and churchwardens to take 
down boundary wall on N. side of churchyard. 
And Faculty 4th March 1892. 
 

5 Feb 1892 

M/D/BOM/5/34-36 Cuttings relating to Liberation Society’s Burial Bill, the Carno Burial case and 
city churchyard freehold. 
 

 

M/D/BOM/5/37 Notebook containing copy of will of Richard Pughe of p.Llanfihangel yng 
Ngwynfa, clerk, 2nd Dec 1856. 
 

 

M/D/BOM/5/38 Notebook containing copies of wills of Thomas Openshaw Lomax of Bodfach 
esq. 14 Dec 1877 and codicils 1878 and 1880. 
Died 6th March 1882.  Probate 22nd May 1882. 
 

1898 

M/D/BOM/5/39 Transcript of (A)n Answer from Mr Fletcher (to the Objec)tions & Queries of Mrs 
Darby in her Dispute (wi)th me John Fletcher Vicar of Madeley on Thursday the 
22nd Novr. 1764 to which are added some Remarks upon what she calls a Faithful 
Declaration of that Dispute by way of an Appendix  
(The original item is among the papers of John Fletcher  :  John Rylands 
University Library of Manchester, no.25) 
 

 

M/D/BOM/5/40 The nativity of CHRIST, Matter of great Joy to all People.  A SERMON Preach’d 
at NEWTOWN IN MONTGOMERY-SHIRE, ON Christmas-Day 1727.  By 
THOMAS RICHARDS, A.M. Rector of Llanfyllin. 
(London, H.Woodfall 1728) 
 

 

M/D/BOM/5/41 The Happiness of GOOD CHRISTIANS after Death.  A SERMON Preached at 
NEWTOWN IN MONTGOMERY-SHIRE, April 28th, 1732. 
Being the Anniversary of the Funeral of the Lady PRYCE, Wife of Sir JOHN 
PRYCE of Newtown-Hall, Bart.  By THOMAS RICHARDS, AM. Rector of 
Llanfyllin 
(London, H.Woodfall 1732) 
(For Thomas Richards 167?-1760, see Dictionary of Welsh Biography) 
 

 

M/D/BOM/5/42 A SERMON PREACHED at the CORONATION OF KING GEORGE III.  AND 
QUEEN CHARLOTTE IN THE Abbey Church of Westminster, September 22, 
1761.  BY ROBERT, Lord Bishop of Sarum. 
(London, John Hart for Charles Bathurst, 1761) 
 

1761 

M/D/BOM/5/43-44 Y Bugeilydd, Hydref a Mehefin 1881 
 

1881 

M/D/BOM/5/45 THE HYMNS OF ANN GRIFFITHS OF DOLWAR FECHAN, Translated into 
English verse by GEORGE RICHARD GOULD PUGHE, Vicar of Mellor, near 
Blackburn. 
(For George H. Durham, Blackburn, 1900) 
 

1900 

M/D/BOM/5/46 POEMS ON “The Land of The Promise”.  BY DYFED THE REV. E. REES, A 
WELSH DISSENTING MINISTER, BUT NOT A DISESTABLISHER.  
RENDERED INTO ENGLISH VERSE BY G.R.G. PUGHE, VICAR OF 
MELLOR. (in support of Mellor Church and school etc.) 
(John Rutherford esq., M.P., 1901) 
 

1901 

M/D/BOM/5/47 Book containing transcripts of English poetry. 
Inside 1st board  :  ‘M. Pughe  Llanfihangel’.  Sketches of Mortlake Church, poor 
sketches of houses, boats, church at Kilgwrrwg, patterns for gloves, mats etc. 
 

 

M/D/BOM/6 Family Photographs  
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M/D/BOM/6 1 box of photographs mostly unidentified :  members of Evans and Pughe 

families including Revd. Edward Evans (d.1899) , John Pughe Evans, Edward 
Evans (surgeon), Annie and Laura Pughe, Sir John Lomax. 
Miscellaneous views in Llanfechain and of Bodynfoel Hall, Rome, views of 
military manoeuvres;  reproductions and drawings including Llanasa School 
1859 

c.1880-1930 
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